
 

 

Planning Committee 
Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Councillor Chris Clark (Chair) 

Councillor Leila Ben-Hassel (Vice-Chair) 
 Councillors Joy Prince, Clive Fraser, Humayun Kabir, Jamie Audsley, 

Gareth Streeter, Scott Roche, Ian Parker and Lynne Hale 
 

 Reserve Members: Toni Letts, Bernadette Khan, Caragh Skipper, 
Stephen Mann, Pat Clouder, Andrew Pelling, Michael Neal, 
Richard Chatterjee, Ola Kolade and Jade Appleton 
 

A meeting of the Planning Committee which you are hereby summoned to attend, 
will be held on Thursday, 9 September 2021 at 6.00 pm in Council Chamber, 
Town Hall, Katharine Street, Croydon CR0 1NX  
 
ASMAT HUSSAIN 
Executive Director of Resources and 
Monitoring Officer (Interim) 
London Borough of Croydon 
Bernard Weatherill House 
8 Mint Walk, Croydon CR0 1EA 

Michelle Ossei-Gerning 
020 8726 6000 x84246 
michelle.gerning@croydon.gov.uk 
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings  
Wednesday, 1 September 2021 

 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting, however we recommend 
that you watch the meeting remotely via the following link: 
https://civico.net/croydon/meetings/13077  
 
If you would like to attend in person please note that spaces are extremely limited 
and are allocated on a first come first served basis. If you would like to attend in 
person please email democratic.services@croydon.gov.uk by 5pm the working day 
prior to the meeting to register your interest. 
 
If you would like to record the meeting, we ask that you read the guidance on the 
recording of public meetings here before attending. 
To register a request to speak, please either e-mail 

Public Document Pack

http://www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings
https://civico.net/croydon/meetings/13077
mailto:democratic.services@croydon.gov.uk


 
 

 

Democratic.Services@croydon.gov.uk or phone the number above by 4pm on the 
Tuesday before the meeting. 
 
The agenda papers for all Council meetings are available on the Council website 
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings 
 
If you require any assistance, please contact Michelle Ossei-Gerning 
020 8726 6000 x84246 as detailed above. 

mailto:Democratic.Services@croydon.gov.uk
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings


 

 

AGENDA – PART A 
 

1.   Apologies for absence  

 To receive any apologies for absence from any members of the 
Committee. 
 

2.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 20) 

 To approve the minutes of the meetings held on Thursday 15 July 2021, 
Thursday 29 July 2021 and Thursday 26 August 2021 as an accurate 
record. 
 

3.   Disclosure of Interest  

 In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct and the statutory 
provisions of the Localism Act, Members and co-opted Members of the 
Council are reminded that it is a requirement to register disclosable 
pecuniary interests (DPIs) and gifts and hospitality to the value of which 
exceeds £50 or multiple gifts and/or instances of hospitality with a 
cumulative value of £50 or more when received from a single donor 
within a rolling twelve month period. In addition, Members and co-opted 
Members are reminded that unless their disclosable pecuniary interest is 
registered on the register of interests or is the subject of a pending 
notification to the Monitoring Officer, they are required to disclose those 
disclosable pecuniary interests at the meeting. This should be done by 
completing the Disclosure of Interest form and handing it to the 
Democratic Services representative at the start of the meeting. The 
Chair will then invite Members to make their disclosure orally at the 
commencement of Agenda item 3. Completed disclosure forms will be 
provided to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion on the Register of 
Members’ Interests. 
 

4.   Urgent Business (if any)  

 To receive notice of any business not on the agenda which in the 
opinion of the Chair, by reason of special circumstances, be considered 
as a matter of urgency. 
 

5.   Development presentations (Pages 21 - 22) 

 To receive the following presentations on a proposed development: 
 
There are none.  
 

6.   Planning applications for decision (Pages 23 - 26) 

 To consider the accompanying reports by the Director of Planning & 
Strategic Transport: 
 
 



 

 

 6.1   21/00493/FUL Morris House, 2 Bensham Lane, Croydon, 
CR0 2RQ (Pages 27 - 72) 
 

 Demolition of the existing buildings and erection of 11 storey building to 
provide 60 new homes, commercial floorspace (Use Classes E(g) (ii) 
and (iii), F1, F2), and associated landscaping, access, car and cycle 
parking. 
 
Ward: Broad Green 
Recommendation: Grant permission 
 

7.   Items referred by Planning Sub-Committee  

 To consider any item(s) referred by a previous meeting of the Planning 
Sub-Committee to this Committee for consideration and determination: 
 
There are none.  
 

8.   Other planning matters (Pages 73 - 74) 

 To consider the accompanying report by the Director of Planning & 
Strategic Transport: 
 

 8.1   Weekly Planning Decision (Pages 75 - 126) 
 

 Attached is the list of Delegated and Planning Committee/Sub- 
Committee decisions taken between 16 August 2021 and 27 August 
2021. 
 

9.   Exclusion of the Press & Public  

 The following motion is to be moved and seconded where it is proposed 
to exclude the press and public from the remainder of a meeting: 
 
"That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended." 
 

 
 
 



 
 

Planning Committee 
 

Meeting of Croydon’s Planning Committee held on Thursday, 15 July 2021 at 6.30 pm in 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Katharine Street, Croydon CR0 1NX 

 
This meeting was Webcast – and is available to view via the Council’s Web Site 

 
MINUTES 

 
Present: 
 

Councillor Chris Clark (Chair); 
Councillor Leila Ben-Hassel (Vice-Chair); 

 Councillors Joy Prince, Clive Fraser, Humayun Kabir, Jamie Audsley, 
Scott Roche, Ian Parker and Michael Neal (In place of Lynne Hale) 
 

Also  
Present: 

 
Councillors  Luke Clancy and Stuart King 
 

Apologies: Councillor Gareth Streeter 

  

PART A 
 

82/21   
 

Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 1 July 2021 be 
signed as a correct record. 
 
 

83/21   
 

Disclosure of Interest 
 
There were no disclosures of a pecuniary interest not already registered. 
 
 

84/21   
 

Urgent Business (if any) 
 
There was none. 
 
 

85/21   
 

Development presentations 
 

86/21   
 

21/02453/PRE 121 Canterbury Road, Croydon, CR0 3HH 
 
Demolition of buildings and erection of a building with heights ranging 
between four and eight storeys to provide 93 residential units. Associated 
parking and landscaping, along with a public footway/cycle route through the 
site. 
 
Ward: Broad Green 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 

Clara Blagden from Iceni Projects (Planning Consultant), Nick Lawrence from 
Aitch Group (Applicant), Chris Levett from DLA Architecture (Architect), Oliver 
Mckay from Studio Bosk (Landscape Architect), Ian McKenna from Hollis 
(Daylight/Sunlight Consultant) and Lucy Williams from Iceni Projects 
(Townscape) all attended to give a presentation and respond to Members' 
questions and issues raised for further consideration prior to submission of a 
planning application. 
 
The main issues raised at this meeting were as follows: 
 
Residential redevelopment of site – Members addressed the importance of 
making the most of sites was noted though developments needed to be 
responsive to context and of a certain quality, although the improvements 
over the existing building were noted. 
 
Height – There was a mixed response from Members to the massing of the 
scheme; some members suggested that 8 storeys was too high, with the 
massing at the front being prominent and would be the tallest building in the 
area. Some Members suggested that the massing was acceptable given 
corner and gateway of the site. The improvements since the Place Review 
Panel comments were noted. Further analysis or justification could be helpful 
as some Members suggested that the massing could be acceptable if there 
was a high quality design and appearance, and delivered good levels of 
affordable housing and cycling and pedestrian improvements. 
 
Design – The Committee suggested that the architectural design and 
integration of different parts of the buildings could be further developed and 
could match the quality of a gateway site and should add to the local area with 
further work suggested especially around materiality, street level and detail.  

 Active frontages needed to be carefully considered and other uses 
such as a café, health centre or other active uses were suggested. The 
community use rooms welcomed by Members.  

 The scheme should provide for fully accessible units and meet the 
London Plan standards in this respect. 

 There was a discussion around how balconies and winter gardens 
would work in practice, especially in terms of maintenance. 

 The security and the importance of defensible space was highlighted 
by Members specifically at ground floor level and also the security of 
the deck access areas. 

 The importance of biodiversity and having a good urban greening 
factor as possible being achieved was discussed.  

 Members suggested that it was important to ensure cycle storage was 
at sufficient numbers and appropriately designed; as well as the 
importance of meeting air quality standards which was highlighted 
given the site's context, and electric vehicle charging points should also 
be provided including for disabled bays. 

 
 
Affordable housing provision – The delivery of affordable housing was 
noted to be of significant importance and should meet policy requirements of 

Page 6



 

 
 

at least 30% (60:40 split) as a minimum and should deliver true social rent 
levels. Also the importance of having a registered provider on board at this 
stage reinforced to ensure needs were met and further design changes were 
not needed. 
 
Cycle – Cycle and pedestrian route was generally welcomed by Members 
and the segregated design was considered appropriate, though further work 
suggested around the integration of this route into the wider network and 
future improvements in the local area and to clarify maintenance proposals. 
Additionally, the Lombard roundabout improvements for cycling/pedestrian 
users was advocated for, especially given heavy use with three local schools 
and significant development in the immediate area. A proposal for a 
"Cambridge style" roundabout was discussed although it was noted this would 
require TfL approval given the status of the road network. 
 
Other – Members addressed the importance of consultation with local 
residents, businesses and community groups and to engage as helpfully as 
responsible to generate a community response to the emerging design. 
 
Ward Councillor Stuart King addressed to the Committee his local viewpoints 
of the application. 
 
The presentation was welcomed with the opportunity to provide feedback 
which was helpful by Members and it was welcomed that the scheme would 
be encouraged to come forward, responding to the issues raised. 
 
The Chair thanked the developers for their presentation. 
 
 

87/21   
 

Planning applications for decision 
 
There was nine Members present during this Committee meeting, as outlined 
above. The voting therefore was recorded to reflect the nine Members present 
and not ten Members as mentioned on the webcast. 
 
 

88/21   
 

20/05575/FUL 16 Smitham Downs Road, Purley CR8 4NB 
 
Demolition of existing dwelling, erection of a 3/4 storey building comprising 9 
flats with basement car parking, landscaping and amenity space. 
 
Ward: Purley and Woodcote  
 
The officers presented details of the planning application and responded to 
questions for clarification. 
 
Mr Devendra Paramasvaran spoke in objection to the application. 
 

Page 7



 

 
 

The Committee deliberated on the application presentation heard before them 
having heard all the speakers who addressed the Committee, and in turn 
addressed their view on the matter. 
 
The substantive motion to GRANT the application based on the officer’s 
recommendation was proposed by Councillor Clive Fraser. This motion was 
not seconded. 
 
Councillor Humayan Kabir proposed a motion to DEFER the application on 
the grounds of the proposed brickwork being out of keeping with the character 
of the area; the pinch point to the neighbouring properties; and for improved 
security of amenity space and play space and amount/levels of amenity 
space. This was seconded by Councillor Lelia Ben-Hassel. 
 
The motion to defer was taken to a vote and carried with seven Members 
voting in favour and two Members abstained their vote. 
 
The Committee RESOLVED to DEFER the application for the development at 
16 Smitham Downs Road, Purley, CR8 4NB. 
 
 

89/21   
 

20/05370/FUL 5 Smitham Downs Road, Purley 
 
Demolition of existing dwelling, the construction of a part 4/part 5 storey 
residential building accommodating 20 flats, all together with vehicular 
accesses from Smitham Downs Road and The Vale, vehicle and cycle 
parking, refuse provision and associated hard and soft landscaping. 
 
Ward: Coulsdon Town 
 
The officers presented details of the planning application and responded to 
questions for clarification. 
 
Ms Alexandra Collins spoke in objection to the application. 
 
Mr Andy Hollins the applicant’s agent spoke in support of the application. 
 
The referring Ward Member Councillor Luke Clancy spoke at committee 
against the application. 
 
The Committee deliberated on the application presentation heard before them 
having heard all the speakers who addressed the Committee, and in turn 
addressed their view on the matter. 
  
The substantive motion to GRANT the application based on the officer’s 
recommendation was not supported by the Committee. 
 
Councillor Ian Parker proposed a motion to REFUSE the application on the 
grounds of height, size and massing creating an overdevelopment form which 
is out of character in the area; lighting impact on neighbours and the quality of 

Page 8



 

 
 

accommodation to specific units for future occupiers regarding amenity space 
sizes. This was seconded by Councillor Scott Roche. 
 
The motion to refuse was taken to a vote and carried with eight Members 
voting in favour and one Member abstained their vote. 
 
The Committee RESOLVED to REFUSE the application for the development 
at 5 Smitham Downs Road, Purley. 
 
 

90/21   
 

Items referred by Planning Sub-Committee 
 
There were none. 
 
 

91/21   
 

Other planning matters 
 

92/21   
 

Weekly Planning Decisions 
 
The report was received for information.  
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 9.40 pm 
 

 
Signed:   

Date:   

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Planning Committee 
 

Meeting of Croydon Council’s Planning Committee held on Thursday, 29 July 2021 at 
6.02pm in Council Chamber, Town Hall, Katharine Street, Croydon CR0 1NX 

 
This meeting was Webcast – and is available to view via the Council’s Web Site 

 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Chris Clark (Chair); 
Councillor Leila Ben-Hassel (Vice-Chair); 

 Councillors Joy Prince, Clive Fraser, Humayun Kabir, Jamie Audsley, 
Gareth Streeter, Ian Parker, Michael Neal (In place of Lynne Hale) and 
Richard Chatterjee (In place of Scott Roche) 
 

Also  
Present: 

 
Councillors  Luke Clancy and Lynne Hale 
 

Apologies: Councillor Humayun Kabir for lateness  

  
 

PART A 
 

93/21   
 

Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
The Committee agreed to consider the minutes to the meeting held on 
Thursday 15 July at the next meeting. 
 
 

94/21   
 

Disclosure of Interest 
 
There were no disclosures of a pecuniary interest not already registered. 
 
 

95/21   
 

Urgent Business (if any) 
 
There was none. 
 
 

96/21   
 

Development presentations 
 
There were none. 
 
 

97/21   
 

Planning applications for decision 
 

98/21   
 

20/01397/FUL 1-3 South Drive, Coulsdon, CR5 2BJ 
 

Page 11



 

 
 

 
Demolition of existing buildings, and erection of a part 5, part 6 storey (plus 
lower ground floor) block of flats and associated car parking, cycle parking, 
bin storage and landscaping. 
 
Ward: Coulsdon Town 
 
The officers presented details of the planning application. 
 
Councillor Humayun Kabir (having already given apologies for lateness) 
attended the meeting during the presentation of the planning application at 
6:10pm. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, the Chair informed the 
Committee that Councillor Kabir would not take part in the vote on this 
application as he was not present at the start, and took no part in this item. 
 
Following the presentation, officers responded to questions for clarification. 
 
Mr Ronald Jones spoke against the application. 
 
Ms Natalie Gentry and Mr Steve Nunn, spoke on behalf of the applicant in 
support of the application. 
 
The referring Ward Member Councillor Luke Clancy spoke against the 
application. 
 
The Committee deliberated on the application presentation heard before them 
having heard all the speakers who addressed the Committee, and in turn 
addressed their view on the matter. 
 
The substantive motion to GRANT the application based on the officer’s 
recommendation was proposed by Councillor Clive Fraser. This was not 
supported. 
 
Councillor Leila Ben-Hassel proposed for a motion to REFUSE the application 
on the grounds of height, size and mass resulting in an overdevelopment of 
the site; and intrusion and overlooking causing impact on neighbouring 
properties. This was seconded by Councillor Ian Parker. 
 
The motion to refuse was taken to a vote and carried with eight Members 
voting in favour and one Member voting against. 
 
The Committee RESOLVED to REFUSE the application for the development 
at 1-3 South Drive, Coulsdon, CR5 2BJ. 
 
 

99/21   
 

21/00338/FUL 116 Reddown Road Coulsdon CR5 1AL 
 
Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of two 3 storey terraced blocks 
comprising 8 3 bedroom dwelling houses with associated access, 8 parking 

Page 12



 

 
 

spaces, cycle storage and refuse store at 116 Reddown Road, Coulsdon, 
CR5 1AL. 
 
Ward: Coulsdon Town 
 
The officers presented details of the planning application and responded to 
questions for clarification. 
 
Ms Maureen Levy spoke against the application. 
 
Mr Chris Moore spoke on behalf of the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of 
the application. 
 
The referring Ward Member Councillor Luke Clancy spoke against the 
application.  
 
The Committee deliberated on the application presentation heard before them 
having heard all the speakers who addressed the Committee, and in turn 
addressed their view on the matter. 
 
Councillor Leila Ben-Hassel proposed for the hard and soft landscape 
condition to be reworded for the maximum permeable pavement to be used 
on hard areas. 
 
The substantive motion to GRANT the application based on the officer’s 
recommendation inclusive of the amended conditions was proposed by 
Councillor Clive Fraser. This was seconded by Councillor Humayun Kabir. 
 
The motion to approve was taken to a vote and carried with six Members 
voting in favour and four Members voting against. 
 
The Committee RESOLVED to GRANT the application for the development at 
116 Reddown Road Coulsdon CR5 1AL. 
 
 
At 8:16pm the Committee adjourned the meeting for a short break. 
At 8:23pm the Committee resumed the meeting. 
 
 

100/21   
 

21/01619/FUL 158 Purley Downs Road, South Croydon CR2 0RF 
 
Demolition of existing dwelling and garage and erection of two 3-storey 
buildings, comprising of 7 residential units with associated parking, cycle, 
refuse storage and landscaping. 
 
Ward: Sanderstead 
 
The officers presented details of the planning application and responded to 
questions for clarification. 
 

Page 13



 

 
 

Mr Tom Standish spoke against the application. 
 
Mr Arjun Singh spoke on behalf of the applicant in support of the application. 
 
Ward Member Councillor Lynne Hale spoke on behalf of the referring Ward 
Member Councillor Yvette Hopley against the application. 
 
Officers advised the Committee of some inaccuracies within paragraph 8.37 
of the report. The corrections were outlined as below: 
 

 Policy DM10.6 seeks to protect the first 10m of outdoor private garden 
space to property no.160 Purley Downs Road and no.1 North Downs. 

 Relationship of the windows in the rear elevation to the amenity space 
is no different to other nearby property, and the rear elevation is less 
deep to property no.1 North Downs existing rear elevation, therefore no 
detrimental impact to neighbours of overlooking. 

 Overbearing impact is protected close to the rear boundary. 
 
The Committee deliberated on the application presentation heard before them 
having heard all the speakers who addressed the Committee, and in turn 
addressed their view on the matter. 
 
Councillor Chris Clark proposed for a condition for details of the finished land 
levels of the proposed dwellings and levels of amenity spaces and roots 
throughout the sites are to be submitted for approval; and an amendment to 
condition 13 of the landscaping condition to require details to be agreed 
including boundary treatments to ensure privacy to the neighbouring 
properties and semi-mature planting to replace the hedge to the front of site. 
 
The substantive motion to GRANT the application based on the officer’s 
recommendation inclusive of the additional conditions was proposed by 
Councillor Clive Fraser. This was seconded by Councillor Joy Prince. 
 
The motion to approve was taken to a vote with five Members voting in favour 
and five Member voting against. The Chair used his casting vote and voted in 
favour of the substantive motion. 
 
The Committee RESOLVED to GRANT the application for the development at 
158 Purley Downs Road, South Croydon CR2 0RF. 
 
 
At 9:30pm the Planning Committee adjourned the meeting for a short break 
due to a disruption in the Town Hall Chambers. 
 
At 9:36pm the Planning Committee resumed the meeting. 
 
Due to technical issues, at 9:39pm the Planning Committee adjourned the 
meeting. At 9:53pm the Planning Committee resumed the meeting. 
 

Page 14



 

 
 

At 9:54 in accordance with section 6.8 in Part 4K of the Planning and Planning 
Sub-Committee Procedure of the Constitution, the Chair proposed the motion 
to suspend the guillotine and this was unanimously agreed by Members of the 
Committee. The motion to suspend the guillotine was put forward to the vote 
and was unanimously approved. 
 
At 9:58pm the Planning Committee adjourned the meeting. 
At 10:01pm the Planning Committee resumed the meeting. 
 
 

101/21   
 

20/04128/FUL 22 Hartley Down Purley CR8 4EA 
 
Demolition of the existing dwelling and erection of a three storey building 
containing 7 flats. 
 
Ward: Purley and Woodcote 
The officers presented details of the planning application and responded to 
questions for clarification. 
 
Ms Michelle Parmenter spoke against the application. 
 
Mr Pierre Lombarrd spoke on behalf of the applicant in support of the 
application. 
 
The Committee deliberated on the application presentation heard before them 
having heard all the speakers who addressed the Committee, and in turn 
addressed their view on the matter. 
 
The substantive motion to GRANT the application based on the officer’s 
recommendation was proposed by Councillor Humayun Kabir. This was 
seconded by Councillor Jamie Audsley. 
 
The motion to approve was taken to a vote and carried with six Members 
voting in favour and four Members voting against.  
 
The Committee RESOLVED to GRANT the application for the development at 
22 Hartley Down Purley CR8 4EA. 
 
 

102/21   
 

Items referred by Planning Sub-Committee 
 
There were none. 
 
 

103/21   
 

Other planning matters 
 

104/21   
 

Weekly Planning Decisions 
 
This report was received for information.   
 

Page 15



 

 
 

 
 
 

The meeting ended at 10.39 pm 
 

 
Signed:   

Date:   

Page 16



 
 

Planning Committee 
 

Meeting of Croydon’s Planning Committee held on Thursday, 26 August 2021 at 6.40 pm in 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Katharine Street, Croydon CR0 1NX 

 
 This meeting was Webcast – and is available to view via the Council’s Web Site 

 
MINUTES 

 
Present: 
 

Councillor Chris Clark (Chair); 
Councillor Leila Ben-Hassel (Vice-Chair); 

 Councillors Joy Prince, Clive Fraser, Jamie Audsley, Gareth Streeter, 
Ian Parker, Lynne Hale, Andrew Pelling (In place of Humayun Kabir) and 
Richard Chatterjee (In place of Scott Roche) 
 

  

PART A 
 

105/21   
 

Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
The Committee agreed to consider the late minutes received for the meetings 
held on Thursday 15 July 2021 and Thursday 29 July 2021 at the next 
meeting. 
 
 

106/21   
 

Disclosure of Interest 
 
There were no disclosures of a pecuniary interest not already registered. 
 
 

107/21   
 

Urgent Business (if any) 
 
There was none. 
 
 

108/21   
 

Development presentations 
 
There were none. 
 
 

109/21   
 

Planning applications for decision 
 

110/21   
 

20/05575/FUL 16 Smitham Downs Road, Purley CR8 4NB 
 
Demolition of existing dwelling, erection of a 3/4 storey building comprising 9 
flats with basement car parking, landscaping and amenity space. 
 
Ward: Purley and Woodcote 
 

Page 17



 

 
 

The officers presented details of the planning application and responded to 
questions for clarification. 
 
The local residents provided a written statement in objection to the 
application. This was read out by the Committee clerk. 
 
Mr Charles Browne-Cole, the applicant’s agent spoke in support of the 
application. 
 
The Committee deliberated on the application presentation heard before them 
having heard all the speakers who addressed the Committee, and in turn 
addressed their view on the matter. 
 
The substantive motion to GRANT the application based on the officer’s 
recommendation was proposed by Councillor Leila Ben-Hassel. This was 
seconded by Councillor Jamie Audsley. 
 
The motion to approve was taken to a vote and carried with six Members 
voting in favour and four Members voting against. 
 
The Committee RESOLVED to GRANT the application for the development at 
16 Smitham Downs Road, Purley, CR8 4NB. 
 
 

111/21   
 

20/06224/FUL 922 - 930 Purley Way, Purley, CR8 2JL 
 
Demolition of existing 5 residential dwellings and erection of residential 
development formed of 3 blocks of flats ranging from 6 - 10 storey's 
comprising 141 flats with associated land level alterations, landscaping, 
access, cycle and car parking. 
 
Ward: Purley and Woodcote 
 
The officers presented details of the planning application and responded to 
questions for clarification. 
 
Miss Isobel McGeever, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the 
application. 
 
The Committee deliberated on the application presentation heard before them 
having heard all the speakers who addressed the Committee, and in turn 
addressed their view on the matter. 
 
The substantive motion to GRANT the application based on the officer’s 
recommendation was proposed by Councillor Leila Ben-Hassel. This was 
seconded by Councillor Clive Fraser. 
 
The motion to approve was taken to a vote and carried with six Members 
voting in favour and four Members voting against. 
 

Page 18



 

 
 

The Committee RESOLVED to GRANT the application for the development at 
922-930 Purley Way, Purley, CR8 2JL. 
 
 

112/21   
 

Items referred by Planning Sub-Committee 
 
There were none. 
 
 

113/21   
 

Other planning matters 
 

114/21   
 

Weekly Planning Decisions 
 
The report was received for information. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 9pm 
 

 
Signed:   

Date:   

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA  

PART 5: Development Presentations 

1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This part of the agenda is for the committee to receive presentations on proposed 
developments, including when they are at the pre-application stage.  

1.2 Although the reports are set out in a particular order on the agenda, the Chair may 
reorder the agenda on the night. Therefore, if you wish to be present for a particular 
application, you need to be at the meeting from the beginning. 

1.3 The following information and advice applies to all those reports. 

2 ADVICE TO MEMBERS 

2.1 These proposed developments are being reported to committee to enable members 
of the committee to view them at an early stage and to comment upon them. They do 
not constitute applications for planning permission at this stage and any comments 
made are provisional and subject to full consideration of any subsequent application 
and the comments received as a result of consultation, publicity and notification.  

2.2 Members will need to pay careful attention to the probity rules around predisposition, 
predetermination and bias (set out in the Planning Code of Good Practice Part 5.G of 
the Council’s Constitution). Failure to do so may mean that the Councillor will need to 
withdraw from the meeting for any subsequent application when it is considered. 

3 FURTHER INFORMATION 

3.1 Members are informed that any relevant material received since the publication of 
this part of the agenda, concerning items on it, will be reported to the Committee in 
an Addendum Update Report. 

4 PUBLIC SPEAKING 

4.1 The Council’s constitution only provides for public speaking rights for those 
applications being reported to Committee in the “Planning Applications for Decision” 
part of the agenda. Therefore reports on this part of the agenda do not attract public 
speaking rights. 

5 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

5.1 For further information about the background papers used in the drafting of the 
reports in part 8 contact Mr P Mills (020 8760 5419). 

6 RECOMMENDATION 

6.1 The Committee is not required to make any decisions with respect to the reports on 
this part of the agenda. The attached reports are presented as background 
information. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 

PART 6: Planning Applications for Decision 
 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 In this part of the agenda are reports on planning applications for determination by 
the Planning Committee. 

 

1.2 Although the reports are set out in a particular order on the agenda, the Chair may 
reorder the agenda on the night. Therefore, if you wish to be present for a particular 
application, you need to be at the meeting from the beginning. 

 

1.3 Any item that is on the agenda because it has been referred by a Ward Member, 
GLA Member, MP or Resident Association and none of the 
person(s)/organisation(s) or their representative(s) have registered their attendance 
at the Town Hall in accordance with the Council’s Constitution (paragraph 3.8 of 
Part 4K – Planning and Planning Sub-Committee Procedure Rules) the item will be 
reverted to the Director of Planning and Strategic Transport to deal with under 
delegated powers and not be considered by the committee. 

 

1.4 The following information and advice applies to all reports in this part of the agenda. 
 

2 MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 

2.1 The Committee is required to consider planning applications against the development 
plan and other material planning considerations. 

 

2.2 The development plan is: 
 

 the London Plan (consolidated with Alterations since 2011) 

 the Croydon Local Plan (February 2018) 

 the South London Waste Plan (March 2012) 

 
2.3 Decisions must be taken in accordance with section 70(2) of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 and section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requires the 
Committee to have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as 
material to the application; any local finance considerations, so far as material to the 
application; and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Committee to make its determination in 
accordance with the Development Plan unless material planning considerations 
support a different decision being taken. Whilst third party representations are 
regarded as material planning considerations (assuming that they raise town 
planning matters) the primary consideration, irrespective of the number of third party 
representations received, remains the extent to which planning proposals comply 
with the Development Plan. 

 

2.4 Under Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990, in considering whether to grant planning permission for development which 
affects listed buildings or their settings, the local planning authority must have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
architectural or historic interest it possesses. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



2.5 Under Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990, in considering whether to grant planning permission for development which 
affects a conservation area, the local planning authority must pay special attention to 
the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the 
conservation area. 

 

2.6 Under Section 197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, in considering 
whether to grant planning permission for any development, the local planning 
authority must ensure, whenever it is appropriate, that adequate provision is made, 
by the imposition of conditions, for the preservation or planting of trees. 

 

2.7 In accordance with Article 31 of the Development Management Procedure Order 
2010, Members are invited to agree the recommendations set out in the reports, 
which have been made on the basis of the analysis of the scheme set out in each 
report. This analysis has been undertaken on the balance of the policies and any 
other material considerations set out in the individual reports. 

 

2.8 Members are reminded that other areas of legislation covers many aspects of the 
development process and therefore do not need to be considered as part of 
determining a planning application. The most common examples are: 

 Building Regulations deal with structural integrity of buildings, the physical 
performance of buildings in terms of their consumption of energy, means of 
escape in case of fire, access to buildings by the Fire Brigade to fight fires etc. 

 Works within the highway are controlled by Highways Legislation. 

 Environmental Health covers a range of issues including public nuisance, food 
safety, licensing, pollution control etc. 

 Works on or close to the boundary are covered by the Party Wall Act. 

 Covenants and private rights over land are enforced separately from planning 
and should not be taken into account. 

 

3 ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
 

3.1 The role of Members of the Planning Committee is to make planning decisions on 
applications presented to the Committee openly, impartially, with sound judgement 
and for sound planning reasons. In doing so Members should have familiarised 
themselves with Part 5D of the Council’s Constitution ‘The Planning Code of Good 
Practice’. Members should also seek to attend relevant training and briefing sessions 
organised from time to time for Members. 

 
3.2 Members are to exercise their responsibilities with regard to the interests of the 

London Borough of Croydon as a whole rather than with regard to their particular 
Ward’s interest and issues. 

 
4. THE ROLE OF THE CHAIR 

 
4.1 The Chair of the Planning Committee is responsible for the good and orderly running 

of Planning Committee meetings. The Chair aims to ensure, with the assistance of 
officers where necessary, that the meeting is run in accordance with the provisions set 
out in the Council’s Constitution and particularly Part 4K of the Constitution ‘Planning 
and Planning Sub-Committee Procedure Rules’. The Chair’s most visible 
responsibility is to ensure that the business of the meeting is conducted effectively 
and efficiently. 

 
4.2 The Chair has discretion in the interests of natural justice to vary the public speaking 

rules where there is good reason to do so and such reasons will be minuted. 

Page 24



4.3 The Chair is also charged with ensuring that the general rules of debate are adhered 
to (e.g. Members should not speak over each other) and that the debate remains 
centred on relevant planning considerations. 

 

4.4 Notwithstanding the fact that the Chair of the Committee has the above 
responsibilities, it should be noted that the Chair is a full member of the Committee 
who is able to take part in debates and vote on items in the same way as any other 
Member of the Committee. This includes the ability to propose or second motions. It 
also means that the Chair is entitled to express their views in relation to the 
applications before the Committee in the same way that other Members of the 
Committee are so entitled and subject to the same rules set out in the Council’s 
constitution and particularly Planning Code of Good Practice. 

 

5. PROVISION OF INFRASTRUCTURE 

5.1 In accordance with Policy 8.3 of the London Plan (2011) the Mayor of London has 
introduced a London wide Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to fund Crossrail. 
Similarly, Croydon CIL is now payable. These would be paid on the commencement 
of the development. Croydon CIL provides an income stream to the Council to fund 
the provision of the following types of infrastructure: 

i. Education facilities 

ii. Health care facilities 

iii. Projects listed in the Connected Croydon Delivery Programme 

iv. Public open space 

v. Public sports and leisure 

vi. Community facilities 
 

5.2 Other forms of necessary infrastructure (as defined in the CIL Regulations) and any 
mitigation of the development that is necessary will be secured through A S106 
agreement. Where these are necessary, it will be explained and specified in the 
agenda reports. 

 
6. FURTHER INFORMATION 

6.1 Members are informed that any relevant material received since the publication of 
this part of the agenda, concerning items on it, will be reported to the Committee in 
an Addendum Update Report. 

 

7. PUBLIC SPEAKING 

7.1 The Council’s constitution allows for public speaking on these items in accordance 
with the rules set out in the constitution and the Chair’s discretion. 

 

8. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

8.1 The background papers used in the drafting of the reports in part 6 are generally the 
planning application file containing the application documents and correspondence 
associated with the application. Contact Mr P Mills (020 8760 5419) for further 
information. The submitted planning application documents (but not representations 
and consultation responses) can be viewed online from the Public Access Planning 
Register on the Council website at http://publicaccess.croydon.gov.uk/online-  
applications. Click on the link or copy it into an internet browser and go to the page, 
then enter the planning application number in the search box to access the 
application. 

 

9. RECOMMENDATION 

9.1 The Committee to take any decisions recommended in the attached reports. 

Page 25

http://publicaccess.croydon.gov.uk/online-applications
http://publicaccess.croydon.gov.uk/online-applications


This page is intentionally left blank



Bedford House

Dartmouth House

Electrical

Substation

Be
ns

ha
m

 L
an

e

K
ellin

g
 G

ard
en

s

Barnacle works private alleyway
Barnacle works

Dartmouth House

Low rise

Site Boundary

0 10m8

Scale 1 : 200

2 4 6

N

Legend

Disclaimer:Disclaimer:Disclaimer:Disclaimer: This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all related drawings. Do not scale from this 

drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified on site before commencing any work or producing 

shop drawings.The originator should be notified immediately of any discrepancy. This drawing is copyright 

and remains the property of and AStudio Architecture.

Client

4th Floor, 30 Millbank, London SW1P 4DU

T: +44(0)207 401 4100  E: info@astudio.co.uk

www.astudio.co.uk

Rev

A1

FormatScale

Drawing number

Project Orig Zone RoleLocation Type Sequence Number

Drawing name

Project

Project number Drawing Status Suitability

As indicated

P01

BEN-AST-XX-XX-DR-A-010000

Site

Bensham Lane

2 Bensham Lane, Croydon

20004 Planning S0

Site Location Plan - Existing

Scale 1 : 200

Site Location plan - Existing1

Revisions

RevRevRevRev DescriptionDescriptionDescriptionDescription DateDateDateDate DDDDrrrr AAAApppp

P01 Planning 18/01/2021 AL AP

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 6.1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA 9th September 2021 

PART 6: Planning Applications for Decision Item 6.1 

1 SUMMARY OF APPLICATION DETAILS  

Ref:   21/00493/FUL 
Location:   Morris House, 2 Bensham Lane, Croydon, CR0 2RQ 
Ward:   Broad Green 
Description:   Demolition of the existing buildings and erection of 11 storey 

building to provide 60 new homes, commercial floorspace 
(Use Classes E(g) (ii) and (iii), F1, F2), and associated 
landscaping, access, car and cycle parking 

        Drawing Nos:   See Appendix 1 
        Applicant/Agent:  The Oakwood Group  

Case Officer:      Christopher Grace 
 

 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 

Existing  0 0 0 

Proposed flats (Private) 12 (2 
person)

5 (3/4 
person)

12 (5/6 
person) 

Proposed flats (London Affordable 
Rent) 

3 13 2 

Proposed flats (shared ownership) 6 7 0 

Totals 21 25 14 

 
Type of 
floorspace 

Existing 
Floorspace  

Proposed 
Floorspace 

Net gain/loss 

Residential 0sqm 500sqm 500sqm 
Commercial 1,059sqm 347sqm -712sqm 
Number of car parking spaces Number of cycle parking spaces 
4 (3 blue badge and 1 car club)  120 

 
1.1 This application is being reported to Planning Committee because objections 

above the threshold in the Committee Consideration Criteria have been 
received. 

2 BACKGROUND 

2.1  An earlier iteration of this proposal was presented to the Place Review Panel 
(PRP) in October 2020. The main issues raised by the Panel were: 

 The Panel generally gave some support for the scheme which at the time 
was presented as seeking to provide 100% affordable accommodation. 
However they noted there is a risk of creating a social housing enclave, 

Page 29

https://publicaccess3.croydon.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QNYMFHJLJQV00


potential to provide some different tenures in order to create mixed and 
balance communities. 

 The Panel advocate the simplification of the massing and volumes and 
encouraged the applicant to focus more on the ground floor condition and 
public realm. Not satisfied with the approach to parking, public realm and 
communal amenity. The location of the refuse store and parking could 
have a negative impact on the street scene. The development should be 
designed around the public realm, rather than the other way around. The 
current plan form fragments the landscape and public realm into small, 
unusable pockets. These spaces feel leftover and would be poor quality.  

 There could be greater modulation of height, particularly at the Western 
corner. The Southern corner could be reinforced with additional height, 
the North- Eastern edge becoming lower to give a more sensitive 
transition to the 2 storey housing. The prominent corner should be the 
focal point of the scheme. The proposal should celebrate the residential 
entrance. The Panel noted that introducing a second core would give 
greater flexibility in terms of volume and height. The internal layout creates 
long corridors which do not have a lot of natural light. 

 The applicant should test an option where the scheme reinforces the 
building line to Bensham Lane, rather than aligning with the Southern 
Boundary. A consolidated communal amenity space could then be formed 
to the south of the building. Parking could either be provided to the side 
of the building or along Bensham Lane. 

 The applicant needs to have a clearer idea of what uses will occupy the 
ground floor. B1c, B2, B8 and D1 are not interchangeable and the use 
should be defined before the design is developed further. It offers no 
proper servicing access and no yard space. The glazed curtain wall 
treatment would not be appropriate for certain uses. Concerned at the 
division into 2 commercial spaces. The rear commercial space doesn’t 
work well as it has little street presence or legibility. 

 Concerns at the overall amount of amenity space and its usability; that the 
amenity space at high level is broken down into several smaller terraces. 
Given there will be up to 50 children in this development, the Applicant 
should seriously consider how high quality play can be incorporated at 
ground floor level. 

 The applicants should engage with the neighbours to the South to see if 
there is any opportunity to develop a strategy for shared public spaces 
between the two developments 

 The Panel stated that the internal layout creates long corridors which do 
not have a lot of natural light. Angled balcony on the North-East corner on 
Floors 1-3 are quite deep and may affect the quality of light to adjoining 
units. 

Page 30



2.2 An earlier iteration of this proposal was presented to the Planning Committee 
at pre-application stage on 17th December 2020 (19/05846/PRE). The main 
issues raised were as follows: 

    Use: 
 The members expressed concern over the use of the commercial element 

on the ground floor being empty. The applicants informed that they would 
provide a flexible use ie: commercial/community space.  

 Members supported the commercial/community use and the rationale for 
it, particularly in support for a nursery provision and how the open space 
provide for young people. Comments were made around support for the 
existing commercial premises 

Height: 
 Mixed views by Members on the height and place specific policy, some 

Members expressed support on the increased height against the policy 
due to the affordable housing offer, other Members expressed their 
concern about the height and that policy should be adhered to in 
regardless to the affordable offer as it was not justified. There were 
comments relating to the extent of which the Place Review Panel had an 
independent role in taking a view on the height which would be different 
to the policy context outlined in the Councils local plan.  

Design: 
 Members raised concern about the design having a top, middle and 

bottom expression working in particular with regards to the balconies. 

Materials: 
 Members expressed concerns regarding the materials and how they might 

appear during different times of the year such as on a winter day. 

Shade: 
 Members raised issue around the shading effect of the building. 

External areas: 
 Open space and play provision within the scheme was discussed and 

Members focused on the affordable element. To explore the play and 
communal space design further and whether it was publicly accessible. 
There was concerns from Members for the concept of a pocket park at the 
front of the building, the execution of it and the design, and also 
accommodating provision for disabled parking spaces.  

 There were concerns made around the other public spaces around the 
building beyond the play space and how the public realm works at the 
ground and on place making objectives. Comments were made regarding 
the landscaping particularly around the play space and the long term 
maintenance of that space. 

Servicing: 

Page 31



 Members raised concerns with how the servicing of the building was to 
run. 

Privacy: 
 Members were raised in relation to the privacy on the balconies, there was 

a suggestion for storage on the balconies as part of the design 

Accessible Provision: 
 There was Members support for the 10% accessible units, though there 

was a steer from Members that the opportunity to increase that provision 
should be explored 

  Standard of Accommodation: 
 There were concerns made around sufficient storage for the units for 

occupation 

Affordable Housing: 
 Members raised concerns on the affordable housing offer; the applicants 

informed that there was good momentum of 100% affordable provision, 
but the application was likely to seek a 50% provision. 

Wind: 
 There were also comments in regards to wind impacts. 

2.3    Since the PRP and Committee the proposal has been further developed in 
consultation with officers and the above comments (where possible) have been 
addressed in amendments and additional justification provided for the scheme.  

3 RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 That the Planning Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject 
to: 

A. Any direction by the London Mayor pursuant to the Mayor of London 
Order. 

B.  The prior completion of a 106 legal agreement to secure the following 
planning obligations 

1. Provision of 50% affordable housing (by habitable room) at 60% London 
Affordable Rent and 40% Shared Ownership 

2. Air quality contribution of £6.300 
3. Local employment and training strategy and financial contribution 

(construction phase £27,500 and operational phase £3,984)  
4. Carbon off-set contribution of £54,580  
5. Street tree and maintenance contribution of £4,840.00 
6. Sustainable transport contribution of £37,000  
7. 1 on site car club and 3 year car club memberships for future residential 

occupiers, 1 years membership for commercial operator  
8. Car parking permit free restriction for future residents 
9. Travel Plan and monitoring 

Page 32



10. Public realm improvements including pavement improvement works 
along Bensham Lane 

11. Highway works to ensure safe ingress and egress including removal of 
redundant drop kerbs  

12. Section 278 agreement 
13. TV and digital mitigation 
14. Retention of scheme architects (or suitably qualified alternative architect) 
15. Public Art Strategy  
16. Monitoring fees and payment of legal fees 
17. Any other planning obligation(s) considered necessary by the Director of 

Planning and Strategic Transport 
 

3.2 That the Director of Planning and Strategic Transport is delegated authority to 
negotiate the legal agreement indicated above. 

3.3 That the Director of Planning and Strategic Transport has delegated authority 
to issue the planning permission and impose conditions and informative to 
secure the following matters; 

Conditions 

1) Commencement within 3 years  
2) Built in accordance with approved plans 

 
Pre-Commencement  

3) Construction Logistics and Environmental Management Plan  
4) Detailed Surface Water Drainage Scheme 
5) Archaeology 
6) Land contamination  
7) Remediation Strategy  
8) Wind analysis and mitigation measures outlined for landscaping scheme 
9) Tree Protection to neighbouring sites  
10) Piling (prior to specific works) 
11) Thames Water (groundwater protection and upgrade of water supply 

infrastructure) 
  
   Prior to above ground works  

12) Typical façade materials/detailing 
13) Full external facing materials, including physical samples, panels on site and 

detailed drawings of design elements, windows (obscured glazed, blinds), 
doors.  

14) Balcony and balustrading design (including those requiring additional wind 
mitigation owing to their location) and photovoltaics on roof 

15) Fire requirements in respect to London Fire Brigade and final clarification of 
fire safety statement  

16) Hard and Soft Landscaping details including boundary treatment of all Public 
Realm, communal amenity spaces and Children’s Play Spaces  

17) Biodiversity enchantment strategy including lighting design 
18) Aviation warning lights, construction and on building 
19) Public art  

Page 33



 
Prior to Occupation   

20) Landscape and public realm management plan  
21) Flues and Ventilation   
22) Façade maintenance and cleaning strategy  
23) Public realm and external building lighting (delivery) 
24) Delivery and Servicing plan (residential and commercial)  
25) Car Park management plan 
26) Refuse storage and waste management plan (residential and commercial)  
27) Details of Cycle Storage (residential and commercial)  

 
Compliance  

28) Restrict use of ground floor commercial unit to Class E (g) ii, iii, F1, F2 only 
(excluding church and place of worship) 

29) Water use limits  
30) Acoustic Survey, External Noise mitigation and Noise limits (plant) 
31) Thermal Report  
32) Hours of operation 
33) Secured by design  
34) Accessible Homes (M4) and lift provision  
35) Step free access to all amenity spaces  
36) Energy Statement  
37) Whole life Carbon Assessment 
38) Circular Economy Statement 
39) 4 active electric vehicle charging points   
40) In accordance with fire safety statement (other than details to be provided as 

part of condition 15)  
41) In accordance with Air Quality assessment  
42) Any other planning condition(s) considered necessary by the Director of 

Planning and Strategic Transport, and 
 

Informatives 

1) Granted subject to a Section 106 Agreement; 
2) Community Infrastructure Levy; 
3) Code of practice for Construction Sites; 
4) Light pollution; 
6) Requirement for ultra-low NOx boilers; 
7) Thames Water informatives - underground assets and public sewers; 
8) Removal of site notices;  
9) Any other informative(s) considered necessary by the Director of Planning 
    and Strategic Transport. 
 

3.4 That the Planning Committee confirms that it has had special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the settings of listed buildings and features of special 
architectural or historic interest as required by Section 66 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

Page 34



3.5 That, if by within 6 months of the planning committee meeting date, the legal 
agreement has not been completed, the Director of Planning and Strategic 
Transport has delegated authority to refuse planning permission. 

4 PROPOSAL AND LOCATION DETAILS 

Proposal 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Image 1: Proposed CGI image of scheme from London Road (central building)  

4.1   The proposal involves the demolition of the existing commercial building, 
introducing a mixed use development, providing an 11-storey block with 
commercial ground floor and 60 flats above within the Broad Green Ward 
identified by Policy DM36 of the Croydon Local Plan 2018 (CLP). The scheme 
would comprise as follows: 

 A 347sqm ground floor commercial use with basement plant – Use Class 
E (f)(g) with employment for 12 people (based on floor area).  

 10 floors to provide 60 new homes consisting of 21 one bedroom units, 
25 two bedroom units and 14 three bedroom units. 

 40% provision of family units for the private units.  

 50% (per habitable room) affordable housing (31 flats) providing (58/41 
tenure split between affordable rented and intermediate homes (62/38 
habitable rooms). 

 The proposal would be car-free providing 4 wheelchair 
accessible car parking spaces only, 110 cycle spaces; new crossover 
access, remove the redundant crossovers and reinstate the pavement at 
these points. 

Page 35



 The proposal includes public realm and private amenity spaces rising from 
4 to 11 storeys from north to south, stepping up three levels and including 
communal gardens on each.  

 From the north, the foot print of the building would be set back from the 
front boundary line for two thirds of the site to provide parking area, 
landscaped garden, seating, communal area and improved public realm 

4.2 Additional information has been provided since the planning application was 
originally submitted, as follows: 

 affordable housing clarification and discussions with Register Provider;  
 proposed uses to the commercial ground floor;  
 housing mix;  
 daylight and sunlight assessment;  
 new parking layout; 
 further public realm improvements;  
 increase in cycle provision following discussions with TfL;  
 details relating to the energy strategy/urban greening factor as requested 

by the GLA. 
 
4.3 The proposed changes involved slight amendments and clarification and did not 

require the need for further neighbour consultation. 

Site and Surroundings 

4.4 The 0.1 hectare site lies on the east side of Bensham Lane, 71m north of London 
Road (A235) and 106m north of the District Centre. The site contains a single 
storey profiled cladded warehouse/commercial building located on an irregular 
shaped triangular area fronting Bensham Lane. The site has a wide pavement 
frontage with several drop kerbs many of which are redundant with servicing 
taking place directly off Bensham Lane. The building consists of a glazing 
merchant with small retail element, a mixture of ancillary A1 (shops) and B8 
(storage or distribution) uses and is classified as within a Tier 4 Employment Area 
under the Croydon Local Plan.  

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36



Image 2: satellite aerial image with site outlined in red line 

4.5 To the north of the site lies a shared vehicle access point to a previously light 
industrial site which is currently being redevelopment to provide 20 residential 
flats. Also north are two storey terrace houses facing Bensham Lane. Opposite 
the site to the west is an 8-storey block of flats falling to 3-storey and end of 
terrace two storey houses on the corner with Kelling Gardens. Adjoining to the 
south east and south are rear gardens to large detached two storey houses in 
Elmwood Road (nos.11,13,15) and communal gardens and car park to 9 storey 
Council block of flats and cottage houses (1-40 Darmouth House). 

4.6 The site lies 850 metres walk from West Croydon Railway Station, is located 
within an Archaeological Priority area, an area of low risk surface and ground 
water flooding and has a Public Transport Accessibility Level of 5. Oshwal Grade 
II Listed Church Building is located on London Road approximately 300m away 
to the west of the site. The site is not located in a Conservation Area. 

Planning History 

4.7 The following planning history is relevant for this site: 

2 Bensham Lane 
 19/05846/PRE: Demolition of existing single storey commercial building and 

construction of mixed development of commercial/residential use in a single 
block a maximum of 11 storey in height to provide 60 new homes and ground 
floor commercial floorspace with associated landscaping, new highway access 
and car/cycle parking as well as bin storage.  

18/05505/PRE: Erection of a ten storey building comprising of 70 flats 
 

97/01751/P: Alterations; use of part of warehouse for sale of golfing equipment. 
(Permission granted 25/09/1997) 

 
4.8  The following planning history is relevant within the surrounding area: 

 
Barnacle Works at Land rear of 2 Bensham Lane 
19/02461/CONR: Planning permission granted for  demolition of existing 
buildings and erection of 3no. replacement buildings ranging from 2 to 3 storeys 
in height comprising 20 residential dwellings plus associated car and cycle 
parking with hard and soft landscaping measures. 
 
18/04537/FUL: Planning permission granted for demolition of existing buildings 
and erection of 3no. replacement buildings ranging from 2 to 3 storeys in height 
comprising 20 residential dwellings plus associated car and cycle parking with 
hard and soft landscaping measures (currently under construction).  
 
1-40 Dartmouth House Elmwood Road 
18/00250/FUL: Refurbishment and improvement works to the existing high and 
low rise residential blocks on the estate, including provision of storage areas, 
landscaping (with new play area) and car parking (currently under construction). 

 

Page 37



5 SUMMARY OF KEY REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

 The proposed development is in a sustainable location suitable for 
significant development on the edge of a District Centre, with good public 
transport accessibility and would increase employment opportunities and 
Council housing stock in area of mix character.  

 The proposal constitutes a Departure from the local plan by virtue of being 
a tall building in an area which is not designated for tall buildings. For the 
reasons above and as expanded on in the “Considerations” section, the 
proposal is however considered to be appropriate and there are material 
considerations which outweigh the development plan. 

 The development is a high quality design led scheme subject to detailing 
to be secured by planning conditions which would introduce an active 
frontage and enhanced public realm with clear justification for the height 
and form in maximising the site capabilities to provide an acceptable living 
and working environment for future occupiers.  

 The development would provide 50% (per habitable room) affordable 
housing (31 flats of 60), with 18 London Affordable Rent and 13 
intermediate shared ownership accommodation which is fully supported.  

 The proposal would provide a flexible commercial unit and good quality 
residential accommodation. The impacts to neighbours would be limited 
and the proposal would encourage sustainable modes of transport other 
than the car, incorporate safe and secure bicycle access and servicing 
arrangements, incorporate environmental impacts and sustainability 
requirements to comply with Council policies subject to planning 
conditions and S.106 obligations. 

6 CONSULTATION RESPONSE 

6.1 The views of the Planning Service are expressed in the MATERIAL PLANNING 
CONSIDERATIONS section below. 

6.2 The following were consulted regarding the application: 

Mayor of London (GLA) (Statutory Consultee) 

6.3 The GLA (referred due to the proposal being more that 30m high) made the 
following comments. 

 Principle of development: The principle of the comprehensive redevelopment 
of the site with a mixed-use development that retains employment floor space 
on-site and provides new residential units is acceptable.  

 Housing: The introduction of housing on the site will contribute to the council’s 
housing targets. Additionally the scheme proposes 50% affordable housing 
which meets with the Fast-Track threshold of 50%, is former industrial land. In 

Page 38



terms of tenure, the mix of 62% LAR and 38% Shared Ownership accords with 
London Plan policy and is considered acceptable.  

 Urban Design: The overall layout, massing and public realm improvements of 
the scheme raise no strategic concerns, however with regards to height, the 
council should confirm that they consider the site suitable for a tall building. In 
terms of residential amenity, the unit layout, orientation and access to facilities, 
private and communal amenity space is considered acceptable. In terms of 
architecture and design, the scheme is considered appropriate for its location 
and key architectural details should be secured to ensure the development is 
of the highest quality. The proposed development would not cause harm to the 
heritage significance of any heritage assets. Additional information on Fire 
Safety is also required.  
(OFFICER COMMENT: justification for the tall building are covered in the officer 
report below, suitable conditions are proposed in relation to architectural details 
and additional fire safety information has been provided).  
 

 Transport: A car free development is supported, however additional cycle 
storage is required in order to satisfy the requirements of Policy T5 of the 
London Plan 2021. A Delivery and Service Plan (DSP) along with a 
Construction Logistics Plan (CLP) should also be secured by condition.  
(OFFICER COMMENT: an increase in cycle parking in line with London Plan 
policy has been proposed and suitable conditions are proposed in respect to 
DSP and CLP) 

 Sustainability: Further information on urban greening is required.  
(OFFICER COMMENT: this has been provided and is covered in the officer 
report below)  

Transport for London (TFL) (Statutory Consultee) 

6.4 In general, TFL have not objected to the proposal which supports Healthy 
Streets Indicators in terms of promoting sustainable transport, reducing car 
dominance, contributing towards clean air and creating a place to stop and rest. 
TFL welcomed that 95% of the proposed trip generation associated with the 
development will be from active and sustainable modes. TFL have raised the 
following:- 

 The development is proposed to be car-free with the exception of either 4 Blue 
Badge (BB) spaces or 3 BB spaces and 1 car club space be blue badge and 
the applicant should monitor demand for BB parking in a Car Parking Design 
and Management Plan; welcomes the EVC point but remaining spaces must 
make provision for passive EVC points in line with the new London Plan policy 
T6. 20% active and 80% passive EVC points should be provided for all BB 
parking spaces (OFFICER COMMENT: 3 spaces to be blue badge with EVC 
details and Car Parking Management Plan to be secured by condition). 

 Residents will be exempt from applying for car parking permits in any existing 
or future CPZ which should be secured through an appropriate legal 
mechanism (OFFICER COMMENT: this is recommended). 

Page 39



 A total of 99 long-stay and 2 short-stay cycle parking spaces falls short of the 
minimum London Plan standards requires 110 long-stay and 3 short-stay cycle 
parking spaces. The commercial cycle parking provision accords with the new 
London Plan, providing 5 long-stay and 2-short stay spaces. A minimum of 5% 
of the proposed cycle parking spaces should be accessible for larger and/or 
adapted cycles. Cycle parking should be increased to accord with the new 
London Plan Details secured by condition (OFFICER COMMENT:  The 
applicants have increased the level of cycle parking in accordance with London 
Plan standards details t be secured by condition).  

 Car Parking Management Plan, Travel Plan, Construction Logistics Plan and 
Delivery and Servicing Plan should be secured by condition (OFFICER 
COMMENT: conditions and head of terms are recommended). 

Local Lead Flood Authority (LLFA) (Statutory Consultee)  

6.5 The submitted strategy and overall approach meet most of the LLFA 
requirements, however, some clarifications and additional information is 
required. LLFA Recommendation: details acceptable subject to condition 
(OFFICER COMMENT: A condition is recommended). 

Thames Water 

6.6 No objection to the proposal. Conditions and informative in respect of piling, 
minimise groundwater discharges, surface water discharge, protect  public 
sewers, water network and water treatment infrastructure capacity 
recommended (OFFICER COMMENT: recommendation includes conditions 
and informatives). 

 
Designing Out Crime Officer 

6.7 No objection subject to Secured by Design condition requiring details of security 
measures and confirmation certification has been achieved prior to occupation 
condition (OFFICER COMMENT: condition is recommended). 

Land Contamination Assessment 

6.8 Consider the submitted report to be satisfactory. Given the sensitivity of the 
proposed development and the findings of the submitted report, recommend 
standard condition is attached (OFFICER COMMENT: condition is 
recommended). 

  
 London Fire Brigade (LFB) 
 
6.9 The location of hydrant must demonstrate compliance with the functional 

requirements of the Building Regulations (LFB GN29); CFD modelling to be 
submitted to LFB to justify design to ensure tenable conditions during the 
escape and fire-fighting stage and to ensure the staircase remains smoke free; 
details required to justify single stair condition to basement; the provision of a 
cut-off switch for photovoltaic panels on the roof; details of fire doors, 

Page 40



emergency lighting & emergency signage; wayfinding signage, the cause and 
effect of the sprinkler system; sprinkler cut-off switches and the duration plate, 
balconies fire resistance; the Premises Information Box and Regulation 38 pack 
(OFFICER COMMENT: condition is recommended). 

 

7 LOCAL REPRESENTATION 

7.1 The application has been publicised by way of neighbour consultation letters and 
site and local press notice as a departure. The number of representations 
received from neighbours, local groups etc. in response to initial consultation 
notification and publicity of the application were as follows: 

No of individual response:19  Objections: 19     Comments:0 

Including Objection Petition signed by 19 Residents of Bensham Lane and 
Kelling Gardens. 

7.2 The following issues were raised in representations.  Those that are material to 
the determination of the application, are addressed in substance in the 
MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS section of this report: 

Summary of objections Response 
Overdevelopment  
The building will help create what a modern day slum. 
Less than 50m away flats have just been completed 
and are still empty; area overpopulated. 

Refer to paragraphs 9.2-9.5 
of this report. 
 

Design and Appearance  
Not in line with the character of the area. Far too high; 
the design and materials clash with the style and 
character of the neighbourhood; result in an eyesore; 
different from the existing residential architecture; 
height and scale impact on urban character. The 
proposal would tower over the houses in Elmwood 
Road, Bensham Lane, Broad Green Avenue and other 
roads. 

Refer to paragraphs 9.13 – 
9.42 of this report. 

Amenity: noise, light, outlook, privacy, security  
Impact of noise/vibrations/ dust; invasion of privacy; 
undue noise from the building at all hours, especially 
balconies; existing business closes at 5pm.  
 
Affect the sunlight in neighbours garden and houses IN 
Elmwood Road no.11, 13, 15. Details of sunlight and 
daylight report incorrect in describing neighbours 
houses. loss of light to properties in Bensham Lane 
nos. 3 and 9; the sheer size will mean most housing in 
the area will lose natural sunlight for up to 70% impact 
on well-being of children 
 

Refer to paragraphs 9.54 – 
9.73 of this report. 
 

Page 41



Visual Impact Assessment misleading. The viewpoints 
in this assessment carefully chosen to represent the 
visual impact as minimal, which is far from the case for 
properties 11.13.15 Elmwood Road. Result in a 
concrete skyline, darkness and misery. 
 
Neighbouring properties will be directly overlooked 
24/7 by windows, also balconies and terraces; lead to 
loss of privacy life-changing effect on neighbours; and 
the way they live in their houses and gardens; proposal 
little more than 3 feet distant from the back of 
neighbours garden; dominant and overpowering; In 
contrast Dartmouth House does not overlook. 
 
Neighbours worried about the security risk posed by 
the development; the proposed alleyway is likely to 
attract those involved in antisocial behaviour; present 
warehouse building effectively forms part of the 
boundary with no windows and no overlooking or loss 
of privacy. 
Accommodation  
Flats are very small; importance of space in living 
areas and the mental and physical health of occupants. 
None of the flats have disabled living spaces. Are 
these shared ownership/sheltered accommodation or 
for the private rental market? Currently a lot of empty 
blocks in the East Croydon area, People need 
(actually) affordable homes; lack of green space; 
promoting this as 'ownership' is miss-selling. 

Refer to paragraphs 9.43 – 
9.53 of this report. 
 

Trees  
The proposal would reduce trees in area; the 
development should be appropriately screened.  

Refer to paragraphs 9.35 – 
9.36 of this report. 

Transport  
 60 flats 2 cars each 120 spaces –parking is already a 
problem; traffic would increase and there are no 
spaces, within reasonable walking distance. Occupiers 
should not be able to apply for permit parking; an area 
heavily used by ambulances. This new block of flats 
will not guarantee its residents will not have cars 
despite the development stating this is a car free site. 

Refer to paragraphs 9.88 – 
9.96 of this report. 
 

Wind/Fire  
Wind / airflow analysis and its impact on neighbouring 
areas is missing; Fire strategy details required.  

Refer to paragraphs 9.74 
and 9.76 of this report. 

Sustainability  
Carbon impact; Installation of solar panels; Insulation 
measures should be included. 

Refer to paragraphs 9.83 – 
9.87 of this report 

Construction   
Over excessive HGV traffic delivering building 
materials to construction site will block street; 
construction, deep drilling might affect structural 

Refer to paragraphs 9.72 
and 9.73 of this report 

Page 42



integrity of internal walls of houses; Noise from 
construction. Neighbours suggest applicants fund 
survey of their properties before work commences. 
Other  
Properties in Constances Road and 13 Elmwood has 
rights of way from Bensham Lane and rights of parking 
to the rear of our property (Deed of Grant). These 
rights must be preserved. Example of greedy 
developers who think only about profit;  

Access rights are private 
neighbouring individual 
matters; remaining 
comments not planning 
matters. 

 
 

8 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES AND GUIDANCE 

8.1 In determining any planning application, the Council is required to have regard 
to the provisions of its Development Plan so far as is material to the application 
and to any other material considerations and the determination shall be made in 
accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The 
Council's adopted Development Plan consists of the Consolidated London Plan 
2015, the Croydon Local Plan (2018)  

8.2 Government Guidance is contained in the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) amended in July 2021. The NPPF sets out a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development, requiring that development which accords with an up-
to-date local plan should be approved without delay. The NPPF identifies a 
number of key issues for the delivery of sustainable development, those most 
relevant to this case are: 

 Achieving sustainable development (Chap 2) 
 Delivering a sufficient supply of homes (Chap 5)  
 Promoting sustainable transport (Chap 9) 
 Making effective use of land (Chap 11)  
 Achieving well designed places (Chap 12) 
 Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal 

change (Chap14). 
 Conserving and enhancing naturel environment (Chap 15) 

 
8.3 The main Planning Policies relevant in the assessment of this application are 

London Plan (adopted 2021) and Croydon Local Plan (adopted 2018). A list of 
the policies together with the relevant Supplementary planning Guidance are 
attached as Appendix 2.  

 
9 MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 

9.1 The main planning issues raised by the application that the committee must 
consider are: 

1. Principle of development  
2. Affordable housing  
3. Housing mix 

Page 43



4. Townscape and visual impact  
5. Housing and commercial quality for future occupiers 
6. Impact on neighbours amenity 
7. Impact on surrounding environment 
8. Transport, parking and highways 
9. Other planning issues 

 
Principle of Development 

9.2 In considering this proposal the local planning authority has had regard to 
delivering a wide choice of homes and supporting economic growth in favour of 
sustainable development in line with the principles of the NPPF (2021). 
Paragraph 69 of the NPPF acknowledges the contribution of small and medium 
size sites can make in meeting the housing requirements and supports the 
development of windfall sites. Paragraph 88 of the NPPF acknowledges that 
when considering edge of centre proposals local authorities should demonstrate 
flexibility on issues such as format and scale so that opportunities to utilise 
suitable edge of centre sites are fully explored.  

9.3 Policy GG2 of the London Plan 2021 (LP 2021) identifies that to create 
successful sustainable mixed-use places that make the best use of land those 
involved in planning and development must: enable the development on sites 
within and on the edge of town centres as well as utilising small sites. In addition 
to this, proactively explore the potential to intensify the use of land to support 
additional homes and work particularly in locations that are well-connected to 
jobs, services, infrastructure and amenities by public transport, walking and 
cycling; applying a design–led approach to determine the optimum development 
capacity of sites. Policies H1 and H2 seek to increase housing supply and utilise 
small sites. While policy GG4 of the LP 2021 acknowledges that development 
should ensure that more homes are delivered, with strategic target of 50% 
genuinely affordable, crate mixed and inclusive communities, good quality 
homes with high standard of design.  

9.4 At a local level, Policy SP2.1 of the Croydon Local Plan (2018) (CLP 2018) sets 
out that the Council will apply a presumption in favour of new homes. Policy 
SP2.2 commits to the delivery of 10,060 homes across the borough’s windfall 
sites ensuring that land is used efficiently and that developments address the 
need for different types of homes in the borough while Policy DM1 enable 
housing choice for sustainable communities through the minimum provision of 
family homes. Policy SP3.1 of the CLP 2018 encourages innovation and 
investment into the borough to support enterprise and increased employment  
The Council has adopted a ‘4 Tier Approach’ to the retention redevelopment of 
land and premises relating to industrial/employment. Policy SP3.2 of the CLP 
2018 identifies this approach while policy DM8 ensures that developments in 
edge of centre locations maintain the vitality and viability of the boroughs town 
centres.  

9.5 Officers consider that this proposal has had regard to delivering a wide choice of 
homes in a sustainable form of development in line with the principles of the 
NPPF, the London Plan and the Croydon Local Plan. The proposal is acceptable 
in principle, maintaining and improving employment activity to this site in line with 

Page 44



DM8 (as further explained below) while providing a choice of housing for all 
people at all stages of life in line with policy DM1, overall making best use of this 
site. 

Existing and proposed uses 
9.6 The existing building occupies 1,059sqm of floorspace and is identified as failing 

within Tier 4 employment use (on a Scale of 1-4). Much of the building is in a 
poor condition with large areas unused and not marketable under current 
standards as described by the applicants own marketing assessment. The 
building currently provides a low level of employment with only 4 employees. The 
proposal would introduce a flexible, modern, marketable commercial unit, albeit 
with a reduced floorspace of 347sqm but with the capacity to increase 
employment by 70% (12 employees, based on floorspace).  

9.7 Since the Committee meeting in December 2020, the applicants have clarified 
that the proposed commercial uses would fall within Use Class E Commercial 
Business and Service (g) ii (research and development of products and 
processes) and iii (industrial process), F1 (learning and non-residential 
institutions) excluding place of worship and F2 (local community uses).   These 
proposed uses would accord with the permitted uses identified in Table 5.1 and 
therefore accords with policy SP3.2. The inclusion of a mixed scheme involving 
a significantly improved and adaptable commercial premises, increase 
employment, improve viability and vitality to the area in line with National and 
London Plan requirements; involving uses allowed within the CLP 2018 and is 
acceptable in principle. The existing building holds no architectural merit and is 
neither locally nor statutorily listed. Therefore, there is no objection to its 
demolition. 

9.8 This is a small site within a mixed setting at the edge of district centre with 
predominantly residential accommodation to the north. The proposal would make 
a suitable contribution to the boroughs housing stock in a sustainable location. 
The proposal would be in line with the NPPF, London Plan and the Council 
overall strategic policies SP2, SP3 and DM1 in terms of the contribution of small 
and medium size sites, making the most through intensified development, to 
provide a choice of homes, in a well-connected location, while improving the 
environment and immediate surroundings. The principle of the proposed uses 
are therefore acceptable. 

Affordable Housing          

9.9 Policy SP2.4 of the CLP 2018 states that on sites of ten or more dwellings the 
Council will negotiate to achieve up to 50% affordable housing (subject to 
viability), and seek a 60:40 split between affordable rented homes and 
intermediate (including starter) homes; unless there is agreement between 
Croydon Council and a Registered Provider that a different tenure split is justified 
and subject to national regulations on provision of starter homes. In line with 
Policy SP2.4 and the London Plan threshold approach to applications (Policy 
H5), the proposal includes 50% affordable housing by habitable room (31 of 60 
flats, so 52% by unit). From the offset the applicant has presented a scheme 
compliant with London Plan Policy H4 including engaging with an affordable 

Page 45



housing provider. The Mayor has acknowledged this by confirming the scheme 
is eligible for Fast Track Route (without the need for a viability appraisal).   

9.10 In terms of tenure, the mix of 58% of the flats to be London Affordable Rent (62% 
by habitable room) and 41% to be Shared Ownership (38% by habitable room) 
accords with SP2.4 of CLP 2018 and London Plan policy and is therefore 
considered acceptable. The Council’s affordable housing officer has confirmed 
discussions are ongoing between the applicants and a Registered Provider (RP) 
in delivery of the affordable housing. Since the presentation to Committee in 
December 2020 these discussions have further evolved, with the RP identifying 
an interest in delivering the entire 60 unit site. However, this recommendation 
seeks to secure 50% affordable housing provision through the legal agreement). 
Considering the level of affordable housing provision, Mayoral support for the 
housing provision, RP interest in site delivery and Council policy compliance, 
officers support the proposed affordable level which significantly weighs in favour 
of the scheme and the overall public benefit associated with the proposal. 

Housing Mix 

9.11 Policy SP2.7 of the CLP 2018 identifies that the Council will seek to ensure that 
a choice of homes is available in the Borough that will address the Borough’s 
need for homes of different sizes for both market and affordable housing. Policy 
DM1 requires appropriate housing choice for sustainable communities and within 
urban areas of high public transport accessibility and states that in this location 
with PTAL 5 at least 40% of units should have three or more bedrooms. The only 
exception to this would be where there is agreement with the associated 
affordable housing provider that three or more bedroom dwellings are neither 
viable nor needed as part of the affordable housing element of any proposal.  

9.12 The proposal would provide 41% family sized housing for the private housing (12 
of the 29 flats) in line with this requirement. In terms of the affordable 
accommodation only 6% (2 of 31 flats) would be 3 bedroom family sized flats. 
However, the RP has confirmed this position in terms of the viability of the project. 
Based on the confirmation officers are satisfied that the proposal would provide 
the appropriate mix in line with Council policy adding to the Council overall 
strategic target of 30% of all homes by 2036 to have three bedrooms or more 
and engaging DM1.1(a) by having an RP on board. 

Townscape and visual impact 

Tall Building Policy  
9.13 SP4.5 of CLP 2018 sets out that tall buildings will be encouraged in the Croydon 

Opportunity Area, areas in District Centres, locations in areas well connected to 
public transport interchanges and where there are direct physical connections to 
one of the above. Policy SP4.6 is also of note and applications for tall buildings 
will be required to: respect and enhance local character/heritage assets, 
minimise environmental impacts, respond sensitively to topography, make a 
positive contribution to the skyline and image of Croydon and include high quality 
public realm in their proposal.  

Page 46



9.14 When considered in relation to this proposal, the relevant parts of Policy DM15 
of CLP 2018 identifies that tall or large buildings must respect and enhance local 
character proposals; will be permitted where they are located in place specific 
areas as outlined by policies DM34 to DM49; they should be located in areas 
with a minimum Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) rating of 4; be of 
exceptional design quality; that the building height, footprint and design relates 
positively to nearby heritage assets and improve the quality and access to open 
space; should include at least an active ground floor and inclusive public realm. 

9.15 Policy D9 of the London Plan 2021 expands further when considering tall 
buildings and states that development proposals should address the views of the 
building from different distances; reinforce the spatial hierarchy of the local and 
wider context, aid legibility and wayfinding; ensure architectural quality and 
materials should be of an exemplary standard maintained throughout its lifespan, 
and avoid harm to heritage assets and their settings. This is also considered into 
terms of the functionality of the building, its environmental impacts and its overall 
cumulative effect which is expanded further on the report.  

9.16 The relevant place specific policy of the CLP 2018 is DM36 which details that 
within Broad Green Local Centre proposals should ensure that they positively 
enhance and strengthen the character of Broad Green Local Centre, and 
facilitate growth, development and complement the existing predominant building 
height of 2 to 4 storeys. It is relevant to note the close proximity of the site to 
London Road and that the CLP identifies the general character of London Road 
as consisting of ‘large buildings with continuous frontage line’ and ‘large buildings 
with spacing’.   

 

Image 3: Showing line of taller buildings on the left and smaller buildings on the right 
with the application site outlined in red on edge of District Centre  

9.17 At 11 storeys in height the building would be located north of 9-storey Dartmouth 
House, opposite 3-8 storey Bedford House to the west, 90m from the 5 storey 
block Half Moon Court 301 London Road to the south; 200m from the 8 storey 
block The Interchange; and just over 200m from 14-storey residential block City 
House to the west. Therefore in view of its position on the edge of District Centre 
and proximity to similar other tall buildings, the development would be considered 
as reflecting predominant heights in terms of its immediate surroundings in 

Page 47



accordance with policy while stepping down to reflect the lower level 
characteristic terrace properties further north.  

9.18 As part of its overall assessment the proposal underwent a VU CITY analysis 
which demonstrated that the building would be noticeable from limited 
viewpoints. The site is not located within or nearby any Conservation Area. The 
proposal would not impact on any listed buildings, the nearest being Oshwal 
Grade II Listed Church Building located on London Road 288m away to the west 
of the site. Officers have considered therefore that there would be no harm to 
heritage assets as a result of the proposal.   

 

Image 4 View of proposed building from along Bensham Lane looking south towards 
London Road  

9.19 The block at 11 storeys is considered to be a departure from policy, when 
considering the place specific policy and the Tall Building policies of both CLP 
2018 and the London Plan 2021. However, a Local Planning Authority may 
depart from development plan policy where material considerations indicate 
otherwise. It is important that the Croydon Local Plan is read as a whole, and 
that failure to comply with a single policy within the plan would not necessary 
lead to a sustainable reason for refusal. 

9.20 In this case, the site meets many of the criteria’s set out by both the strategic and 
detailed Tall Building policy. It is located in an area with good access to public 
transport (PTAL 5), as well as local shops and services within the District centre, 
it provides improved and increased employment while providing a good 
affordable residential affordable housing. An assessment of how the scheme 
achieves a high quality design, would make a positive contribution to the 
immediate surroundings and wider environment is examined below.  

Density 
9.21 The proposal would make full potential of the site, by maximising density. Policy 

D2 of the London Plan (2021) allows for proposals which exceed capacity, but 
are acceptable in terms of use, scale and massing, given the surrounding built 

Page 48



form, to be delivered in appropriate areas and should be positively considered 
where appropriate. 

9.22 Policy D3 of the London Plan expands further identifying that all development 
must make the best use of land by following a design-led approach that optimises 
the most appropriate form and land use for the site. The design-led approach 
requires consideration of design options that responds to a site’s context and 
capacity for growth. In delivery of good design Policy D4 requires that sufficient 
design analysis and development certainty is provided to help bring forward 
development and ensure high quality through the design-led approach. 

9.23 The applicants have submitted a character appraisal study and townscape 
analysis, alongside demonstrating the impact of the building on the immediate 
surroundings using 3D modelling through VU city. The proposal was presented 
to the Place Review Panel (PRP) followed by a pre-application Planning 
Committee, to ensure the proposed height was justified through a high quality 
design and public realm that seeks to enhance the local character and 
streetscene. The density is supported.  

Site layout and massing  
9.24 The proposed building would be irregular in form with four main sides stepping 

up in height from 3 storeys to 11-storeys from the north east to south west, 
narrowing with the southern tip of the site facing towards London Road. The siting 
of the building footprint has been informed by the boundary lines of the site and 
responds to the immediate context by continuing the building line adjacent to the 
neighbouring development at the rear of 2 Bensham Lane stepping up from the 
lower residential properties to the east. 

9.25 Officers are in support with the proposed distribution of height (with the highest 
element facing London Road). Whilst the proposed height is significantly taller 
than properties adjacent, particularly on Bensham Lane, on balance, the 
approach to the massing can be supported subject to a high quality design that 
positively mediates between urban edge of London Road and the suburban 
streetscene on Bensham Lane through high quality design and integrated public 
realm. 

 

Page 49



Image 5: Proposed ground floor layout plan  

9.26 The building would align with the site boundary along the south and for a third of 
its length along Bensham Lane to form the tip, but would be set back from the 
remainder of the Bensham Lane frontage to form new public realm, landscaping 
and parking. The building adequately address the site constraints with the taller 
but slender form towards the south and wider more reduced form and lower 
residential buildings towards the north. The inclusion of the 
commerical/community use on the ground floor with the entrance facing London 
Road and the separate residential access facing Bensham Lane is supported.  
The provision of the communal garden with the off street parking on the northern 
edge utilising the existing access and the back of house entrances to the 
commercial/community uses creates distinct frontages which is supported from 
a design perspective. The proposal would positively respond to local 
distinctiveness in terms of its layout, orientation, scale, appearance and shape. 
The proposal would enhance the activity and appropriately frame the public 
realm complement the existing street scape and surrounding area at this point. 
Subject to high quality public realm, boundary treatment and landscaping which 
would be secured by condition the proposal would create a comfortable 
pedestrian environment along this section of Bensham Lane.  

Architectural Design  
9.27 The proposed scheme is defined as a tall building in its context and therefore 

must address specific tall building design requirements. London Plan and Local 
Plan guidance identifies the importance of a distinct top, middle and base on tall 
buildings to reduce the overall impact of the proposed massing and ensure the 
street scene elevation relates to the pedestrian scale. This has been 
incorporated as part of the façade approach, via an articulated grid that 
distinguishes the ground floor level commercial/community use and residential 
access. A weighted top of the building is also proposed, which provides a defined 
and attractive edge to the building when viewed from afar. 

 

Page 50



Image 6: Proposed architectural grid approach of the building with 
commercial/community ground floor and residential on upper floors.        

9.28 The applicant has undertaken character analysis looking into the expression, 
materiality, fenestration and detailing of the local context at a range of scales. 
This has included specific analysis of the local colour tonality which has informed 
the façade colour palette. Officers support the proposed use of brick and metal 
panelling in the building appearance. In line with previous Members comments 
officers suggested a warmer colour palate to bridge the suburban Bensham Lane 
and urban conditions of the London Road end. The applicants have proposed 
changes in mortar. Further examination of this approach would be secured by 
condition. Finer details in respect to window fenestration (reveal depths, 
materials, etc.), building façade treatment and finish to both the commercial and 
residential entrances, to ensure that they are clearly legible and positively 
enhanced, would be secured by condition. 

9.29 To ensure the design quality presented is brought through to completion of the 
development, officers recommend this is safeguarded in line with Policy D4 f(4) 
of the London Plan through the 106 agreement by ensuring the ongoing 
involvement of the original design team to monitor the design quality through to 
completion.  

 

Image 7: Image demonstrating concept of warmer mortar treatment (1) when compared 
with darker mortar treatment (2) to the building   

Page 51



 

Image 8: Proposed CGI of building displaying warmer tonality     

9.30 The Council acknowledges the important role that public art can play in 
enhancing the setting of a building and creating a visually stimulating public realm 
strengthening local distinctiveness. Policy DM14 of the CLP (2018) states that all 
major schemes are to include public art which responds to the local character. 
Public art should make a positive contribution to the public realm; and provide 
the opportunity to engage with the local community in its creation. The applicants 
have agreed to the inclusion of a form of public art on site. To ensure that a high 
quality public art commission is successfully delivered, a detailed brief outlining 
budget, design development, visualisations, production, installation should be 
developed. Officers suggested that the applicant consider the ground floor blank 
walls as a potential location for the public art, and/or the ground floor boundary 
treatment. The details of the brief to be secured by S106 agreement. 

Public Realm, landscaping, neighbouring trees 
9.31 There are no trees situated within the site boundary. Through setting the building 

back along the Bensham Lane frontage, the proposal would introduce a green 
pocket multi-functional area by providing external amenity space, play space, 
and a communal area. The proposal would enhance the public realm at this point 
with a new tree line approach to help soften the appearance by creating a hedged 
boundary line, with a rationalised parking layout which enables the ground floor 
play areas to link more effectivity identifying clear paths to back of house areas. 

Page 52



 

Image 9: Image showing proposed public footpath upgrade and ground floor 
landscaping plan   

9.32 The landscaping plan has been modified to reflect changes to the public realm 
in securing a treeline approach within the boundary of the site and along the 
public footpath. The proposed tree planting is welcomed. Details of species of 
trees would be required, and an analysis would have to be undertaken in terms 
of highway safety and to ensure that there are no underground services 
requirements to restrict new tree planting. Details would need to be provided of 
the type and future on-going maintenance of all planting on site and along the 
footpath. 

9.33 The applicants have proposed a robust planting scheme to the communal 
amenity areas requiring less maintenance while also providing habitat for insects 
and birds. Details of boundary treatment, hedging, lighting and seating would be 
secured by condition. The proposed roof top amenity is supported. A water 
system has been outlined to guarantee a healthy life to the planting especially 
on the terraces. This would involve minimum maintenance with water taps 
provided on all terraces to allow for manual irrigation; details to be secured by 
condition. Officers advise that landscaping proposed is acceptable. 

9.34 Members previously expressed concern over the external triangular area 
towards the northeast of the site. This area has direct access from the 
commercial/community premises and would be used as a dedicated external 
space for the operator, the maintenance of this being the responsibility of the 
operator. The applicant proposes introducing trees in this area.  The residential 
elements will not have use of this area and will therefore not be required to 
contribute towards its upkeep.  The applicants have advised that as part of any 
future lease, the landlord will retain step in rights to maintain this area, if the 
tenant fails to do so, the cost of maintenance would be charged back to the 
tenant.  

Page 53



9.35 The applicants tree report has identified pruning of neighbouring Cypress tree 
(T7) in rear of no.11 Elmwwod Road who’s limbs have grown over on to the site 
and which appears to have been pruned in the past. Two further mature Common 
Lime trees (T6 and T8) has also been identified to the rear of no.11 between 5m 
and 8m from the site. The report identifies that the canopy spread of branches 
for both trees T6 and T8 is sufficiently remote from the proposals to be unaffected 
by construction works. Five ornamental apple trees have been identified in the 
rear of Dartmouth House to the south east. The report identifies that these would 
be unaffected and effectively protected during construction. Tree Officers have 
reviewed the report and do not raise any objections. Subject to details requiring 
tree protection measures prior to commencement it is considered that there will 
be a neutral impact upon these neighbouring trees. 

9.36 The proposal is subject to London Plan 2021 Policies G1 (Green Infrastructure) 
and Policy G5 (Urban Greening). In accordance with these policies and as part 
of its overall calculation the applicant has included semi-natural vegetation,  
green roof areas, perennial planting and trees in tree pits to demonstrate how 
the scheme meets the Urban Greening Factor (UGF) target. The proposal has 
been amended to include additional greening with provision of new trees to the 
north and west of the site and at 0.60 would exceed the 0.4 required by policy for 
a residential development. Officers are satisfied that a condition would ensure 
that the additional requirements would be introduced to the meet the full 
requirement. 

Designing Out Crime 
9.37 The proposal was considered by the Metropolitan Police Service’s Designing Out 

Crime Officer who advised that the site should be well thought out to minimise 
the risk of criminal activity. They have not raised any objection subject to the 
applicants achieving Secured by Design accreditation through a planning 
condition.  

Conclusions on townscape and visual impact  
9.38 The scheme constitutes a tall building outside an area designated for tall 

buildings, and as such is a Departure from the development plan. However VU 
city analysis has demonstrated the minimal impact the proposal would have from 
a number of varied viewpoints and would not impact on any heritage assets (both 
designated and undesignated).  As set out above, these issues require careful 
consideration as to whether the proposal is acceptable.  The scheme is not in an 
area identified for tall buildings, but all the other criteria set out in policy DM15 
are met (such as the high PTAL of the site, quality of the scheme etc).  

9.39 Townscape analysis provided as part of the Design & Access statement presents 
the scheme within its broader context of London Road and its surrounds, which 
includes the variety of heights and building typologies.  The proposed massing 
responds to this condition in its design, with the highest point of the massing 
facing towards London Road which is an appropriate approach. Efforts to 
mediate any visual impact of the scheme have been incorporated through its 
stepped massing approach, introducing a finer grain to the massing overall that 
reflects the suburban context of Bensham Lane 

Page 54



9.40 In terms of the Departure - the policy departed from is the requirement in DM15 
for tall buildings to be located in areas identified (policy DM15a), which is 
consistent with D9 of the London Plan, and the Broad Green place specific policy 
for buildings to be up to 4 storeys in height complementing the character of the 
area. A Departure must be justified by material considerations that outweigh the 
departure.  

9.41 Officers consider that there are material considerations outweigh the departure 
as follows:  

 scheme’s contribution to sustainable development through its use 
of a well located accessible site,  

 high quality of design and landscaping proposed throughout the site 
 benefits through the provision of improved public realm;  
 the good provision of residential units and affordable housing units; 
 new and fit for purpose employment provision. 

 
9.42 Therefore, officers are satisfied that a Departure is justified in accordance with 

the requirements of the Development Management Procedure Order 2015. 

Housing and commercial quality for future occupiers  

9.43 Policy SP2.8 of the Croydon Local Plan 2018 indicates that housing should cater 
for residents’ changing needs over their lifetime and contribute to creating 
sustainable communities. Individual units should meet the standards set out in 
the London Housing SPG and Nationally Described Space Standards. This is 
also covered in D6 of the London Plan 2021.  

9.44 The proposed building would have legible and well-designed entrances for both 
the residential and commercial uses. The recessed residential entrance area 
would have direct sightline along Bensham Lane facing towards London Road. 
Within this area would be post boxes in line with secured by design requirements. 
Internally, the residential communal spaces at ground floor level would have a 
generous entrance width, sensible layout, with two lifts in a central core, access 
to bin, bulky waste and bike storage. Travelling up through the block, the space 
and access would be replicated with 12.5 metres the longest distance for only 3 
flats of the 60 to access the lift. A maximum of seven flats would exist per floors 
on levels 1-3, reducing to six and finally four. There would be easy access for 
residents to use the communal amenity areas at levels 4, 7 and 9.  

Page 55



          
 

           
Image 10: Typical internal floor layout with size of flats and access to communal amenity 
areas at various levels.    

9.45 All units would comply with the Nationally Described Space Standards, with 
sensible layouts, storage space and well-proportioned rooms. 41 of the flats 
would be dual aspect with 19 single aspect south facing units, which would 
mostly be one-bedroom flats all of which would be no deeper than they are wide 
thereby allowing good access to natural light. No north facing single aspect units 
are proposed. The applicants light assessor states that “the proposed habitable 
rooms within the scheme will benefit from good sky visibility owing to the 
orientation of the proposed building and positions of the windows.  The proposed 
living/kitchen/dining rooms have been designed with the living area closest to the 
windows to maximise daylight amenity in this area of the rooms, the majority of 
living/kitchen/dining rooms are also multi-aspect which will increase daylight 
availability. The windows orientated in a southerly direction will benefit from good 
levels of sunlight amenity, particularly in the mornings when the sun path is 
largely unobstructed. Overall the proposed habitable rooms are expected to 
receive adequate levels of daylight and sunlight amenity that are contextually 
appropriate for the area and commensurate with other developments of a similar 
scale in the borough.”  Officers are satisfied that the proposed rooms would 
receive reasonable levels of light with single aspect flats restricted to the south 
in line with design solution for this site. The flats would receive good ventilation, 
daylight, sunlight, outlook and privacy with windows at least 16m from nearest 
windows directly opposite to the west. The applicants have provided a thermal 
study report as required by Policy D6 (c) of London Plan (2021) which 
demonstrates that each flat would benefit from a mechanical ventilation heat 
recovery system, ensuring the building design reduces any risk of overheating. 

Page 56



Blinds are also proposed within the building as part of the strategy mitigating any 
potential overheating.  

9.46 The site lies close to London Road and this is an obvious source of noise 
pollution. To ensure that a reasonable level of amenity for future residents is 
obtained throughout the year, the proposal would have to be in accordance with 
the findings of the supporting noise report and noise mitigation measures (double 
glazing and ventilation systems) will be secured by way of condition. 

9.47 The applicants have submitted a fire statement identifying aspects such as fire 
competency, construction method, products and materials to be used, means of 
escape and evacuation strategy, and passive and active fire safety measures.. 
This has been bolstered following GLA comments. Officers have reviewed the 
information alongside our Building Control colleagues and consider the report 
generally acceptable. Officers acknowledge that it is unreasonable at this stage 
for detailed management strategies to be in place as this matter will be finalised 
through the Building Regulations regime. Subject to a condition to include details 
of fire service vehicle arrangements, risk free waiting facilities at lift location and 
further information on an operations management plan and the sprinkler system 
updated to reflect current requirements; the proposal is considered acceptable 
and would form part of the Stage 2 submission to the GLA to meet D12 of the 
London Plan 2021. Following consultation with the London Fire Brigade further 
details would also need to demonstrate the location of fire hydrants, smoke free 
corridors, emergency measures, cut-off switches, fire doors, lighting sprinkler 
system and signage. All aspects are covered by a suitably worded condition.  

Accessible Housing 
9.48 Level access is proposed throughout the building. 6 (or 10%) of the proposed 

units are designed to be accessible ‘wheelchair user’ dwellings, which satisfies 
the Local Plan requirement for new homes to comply with Building Regulation 
Part M4(3) (Wheelchair User Dwellings). The remaining 90% of units would be 
accessible and adaptable M4(2) dwellings. Planning conditions are 
recommended to secure compliance with Parts M4(2) and M4(3) of the Building 
Regulations. The site offers level access routes to wheelchair accessible parking 
with each of the 4 spaces blue badge permit holders. 

Outdoor Amenity Space and Playspace 
9.49 In line with the London Plan Housing SPG standards each of the units would 

have their own private amenity space by way of balconies and access to 
communal amenity space areas. The private balconies range from 5 to 8sqm and 
the building also includes communal amenity space and child playspace spread 
over four levels (as detailed within the public realm and landscaping section). 
This allows opportunity for residents to access areas of open space with direct 
sunlight throughout the day.  

9.50 In terms of play space, the child yield calculator expects 27 children to reside in 
the development, with the development required to provide 261 sqm of play 
space. The proposal includes 419sqm of play space across the site. The 
combined shared landscape amenity areas and the private amenity spaces 
(balconies) would meet with the minimum benchmarks for the play space 
requirements for 0-17 year olds on-site which is fully supported. 

Page 57



Agent of change  
9.51 In line with London Plan Policy D13, the upper residential floors have been 

designed to factor in the proposed ground floor uses in respect to noise and other 
nuisance generating uses; the full details to be secured through conditions with 
the development to be completed in line with applicants acoustic survey. The 
ground floor level has be designed with regard to existing neighbouring 
occupiers. Details of flues, extracts, sound measures would safeguard 
neighbouring amenity and ensure that the responsibility for mitigating any 
potential future noise and nuisance lies firmly on the new development.  Further 
restrictions in terms of hours of operation, service, delivery and service plans and 
preventing the introduction of alternative noise generating uses would further 
safeguard neighbouring amenity.  

Housing Quality Summary 
9.52 Overall, the proposed development would provide well-designed homes which 

would offer a sense of arrival and place of retreat, in line with CLP 2018 and the 
London Plan, as well as the aspirations of the London Housing SPG. The homes 
themselves would offer residents a combination of good outlook, privacy, sunlight 
and daylight, internal spaces and private amenity spaces. There would also be 
also be well-designed communal landscaped gardens and playspace. Overall, 
the proposal would all offer an acceptable standard of accommodation. 

Commercial/community quality 
9.53 In terms of the commercial/community floorspace, the design offers high floor to 

ceiling heights, which allows for mechanical ventilation systems to be fitted in the 
ceiling void, good sound insulation and accommodating measures for vibration 
transfer mitigation. The commercial/community frontage would have generous 
windows with integrated louvres and has been designed with flexibility in mind 
so that it can accommodate all permitted uses and be attractive to the widest 
possible commercial market or appropriate community uses. Other 
requirements, such as back of house facilities, dedicated bike and waste store, 
toilets and kitchenette have also been incorporated. Details of ventilation 
systems would need to be secured by condition. 

Impact on neighbouring amenity  

9.54 Policy DM10.6 states that the Council will not support development proposals 
which would have adverse effects on the amenities of adjoining or nearby 
properties, or have an unacceptable impact on the surrounding area. Neighbours 
have objected to the proposal in reference to loss of natural light, overlooking 
and privacy, outlook, noise and disturbance and security issues.  

9.55 The proposed site has residential development surrounding on all sides with 
distances varying from 8.1m to the proposed development to the north (currently 
under construction) to 41.2m to the rear of cottages in Dartmouth House. (As 
shown in diagram below) 

Page 58



        

Image 11 Separation distances between the development and neighbouring buildings 
indicated on plan and 3D depiction.   

Light issues 
9.56 The applicants sunlight/daylight report (SDR) has been based on BRE Report 

‘Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight: A guide to good practice Second 
Edition’ (2011). 

9.57 The GLA’s Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (published March 2016) 
states the following with regard to daylight and sunlight amenity at paragraphs 

“BRE guidelines on assessing daylight and sunlight should be applied sensitively 
to higher density development in London, particularly in central and urban 
settings, recognising the London Plan’s strategic approach to optimise housing 
output (Policy 3.4) and the need to accommodate additional housing supply in 
locations with good accessibility suitable for higher density development (Policy 
3.3). Quantitative standards on daylight and sunlight should not be applied 
rigidly, without carefully considering the location and context and standards 
experienced in broadly comparable housing typologies in London” (see Appendix 
3 for definitions) 

9.58 The proposed building would be 26m from terrace houses Nos.5 – 11 Bensham 
Lane located opposite to the north. The applicants SDR identifies these windows 
to be habitable rooms. The windows to properties 7-11 using the Vertical Sky 
Component (VSC) would retain 0.80 times its existing daylight value and would 
meet BRE test. The SDR identifies that existing daylight light levels to no.5 would 
be slightly below this 0.70 to 0.78 however the daylight/distribution (DD) to these 
rooms would be in line with BRE requirements with negligible changes in the lit 
area of these rooms. In terms of sunlight the results show each of the properties 
would continue to receive acceptable level of annual probable sunlight hours 
(APSH) including during the winter in line with BRE standards. The report has 
also considered overshadowing of these neighbours gardens and found that 
each would retain at least 2 hours of direct sunlight to at least 0.80 times the area 
in line with BRE guidance. 

9.59 The proposed building would be 25m from nos.1 and 2 Kelling Gardens with no.1 
opposite on the corner of the junction with Bensham Lane. 10 of the 11 windows 
in no.1 would comply with BRE Guidance with acceptable level of VSC and D/D 

Page 59



levels. The exception being a single window in the ground floor side elevation 
facing Bensham Lane which would have a reduction of 0.47% in VSC and 
reduced form 98% to 51% in DD. However this window faces south and in terms 
of sunlight would receive acceptable level of APSH including during the winter in 
line with BRE standards. All the windows in no.2 Kelling Gardens would comply 
with BRE guidelines using both VSC and DD with no windows facing south. The 
rear gardens of these properties would retain at least 2 hours of direct sunlight 
to at least 50% of each garden meeting BRE requirements. 

9.60 The proposed building would be 16m-24mm from the 3-5 storey block of flats at 
Bedford House (max 8 storeys) located opposite to the west 26 of the 46 windows 
of Bedford House would comply with the guidelines using the VSC test retaining 
at least 0.80 times their existing VSC value. The 20 windows not meeting the 
guidelines would retain between 0.52 and 0.75 times the existing VSC value, so 
equating to some major adverse impact. The DD results show that of the 38 
rooms tested, only 5 rooms would not achieve BRE guidance retaining between 
0.71 and 0.77 marginally below the BRE Report recommendation of 0.80. A 
significant number of the flats have windows beneath projecting balconies which 
restrict daylight. Further testing demonstrates that the VSC levels without 
balconies but with proposed development would be higher than the existing 
conditions, ie: with the balcony but without development. This the applicants 
state demonstrates that the form of development of Bedford House impacts on 
the internal receipt of light. Officers accept this approach as it is allowed for in 
the BRE guidance. In terms of sunlight 30 of the 38 rooms would comply with the 
BRE for APSH and 36 rooms would comply with the guidelines for sunlight in the 
winter months. A similar test without balconies show that all 38 rooms would 
comply with BRE guidance demonstrating further that the design of Bedford 
House accounts for impacts on light for these neighbouring occupiers. Given the 
flexibility to be applied when assessing daylight and sunlight, alongside the 
balcony testing, the impact on these adjoining occupiers is, on balance, 
acceptable.   

9.61 The proposed building would be between 14m-42m north of the block of flats at 
Dartmouth House which comprises three sets of buildings, a three storey (flats 
1-12) and nine storey block (flats 13-40)  and a terrace of four bungalows 
(nos.41-44). The applicants SDR for flats 1-12 shows kitchen and bathrooms in 
the west elevation set back beneath a recessed covered walkway. 3 of the 8 
windows would have acceptable level of VSC with the remaining windows 
experiencing only a small reduction (of 1.1% to 1.5%) in levels which are unlikely 
to be perceptible to occupiers with acceptable DD levels of at least 0.8% their 
former value. Given the site is to the north of Dartmouth House, there is no 
requirement for sunlight to be tested. Each of the flats 13-40 have windows to a 
duplex layout with the single windows facing north secondary windows to living 
room/kitchen and bedrooms. These windows would have acceptable levels of 
VSC with only minor reductions (retaining 0.77 to 0.78 times ) to kitchen windows, 
however DD shows full compliance; with all windows located within 90-degrees 
due south receiving acceptable levels of both annual and winter sunlight. The 
proposal would result in a moderate adverse reduction (0.67-0.75) in VSC to the 
kitchen and bathroom windows of each of the bungalows below the BRE level 
0.80, with each of these rooms receiving at least 58% DD. However the main 

Page 60



living areas and bedrooms would face south and therefore would be unaffected 
by the proposal ensuring acceptable level of accommodation for these occupiers. 

9.62 The proposed building would be 34m from the rear of no.11 Elmwood Road 
located to the south east. The SDR shows that 6 of the 10 windows assessed 
would comply with VSC levels. 3 of the 4 windows not meeting levels would be 
marginal below requirements 0.76 - 0.78 (minor adverse) with the outstanding 
window receiving 0.63 (moderate adverse) level below BRE value of 0.80. In 
terms of DD 7 of the 8 rooms assessed would comply with the outstanding room 
receiving 0.77 times its former value (minor adverse), marginally below 0.8. The 
report makes the point that the dense garden of this neighbour would form 
additional obstruction of the development during summer months. This 
relationship is acceptable.  

9.63 The site at Barnacle Works currently under construction lies 9m at its nearest 
point to the north of the application site. However none of the habitable windows 
of this development would face the application site and therefore the proposal 
would have limited impact in terms of daylight and sunlight. In terms of 
overshadowing the external areas of this site would retain at least 2 hours of 
direct sun on 21st March. Likewise on the 21st June the report states that amenity 
areas would retain high levels of sunlight in compliance with BRE guidance. 

9.64 The proposed building would be 17m from nos.20 and 20a Bensham Lane 
located to the north east, with a first floor obscured glazed bathroom window and 
ground floor high level obscure glazed window in the flank elevation of no.20 
facing the application site. Any light to these rooms would be impacted by the 
obscured glass and existing building on the site. Officers accept overshadowing 
analysis only as windows in side elevations are not fully protected in planning 
terms and guidance suggests a flexible approach. In terms of overshadowing the 
external areas of this site would retain at least 2 hours of direct sunlight to at least 
0.8 times the area on March 21st and in excess of 90% of the area on June 21st. 

9.65 The proposal would be 70m south of properties in Constance Road and therefore 
these houses were not included in the light survey. The proposal would not 
impact unduly on these neighbours amenity in relation to light impact.    

9.66 Overall the report demonstrates that the majority of properties would not be 
adversely affected by the development.  Given the flexibility to be applied when 
assessing daylight and sunlight, officers conclude that the development would 
have an acceptable impact on the daylight and sunlight amenity to the 
neighbouring residential properties. 

Overlooking, privacy, outlook 
9.67 The proposed building would be 26m from properties to the north (5-11 Bensham 

Lane and 1 Kelling Gardens) compliant with minimum window to window 
distances (18m) set out within the SPD in terms of privacy and outlook. The 
combination of the massing of the building at the furthest southern point of the 
site and its set back from Bensham Lane would limit any potential impact in terms 
of outlook and reduce any potential of overlooking and privacy for these 
neighbours. 

Page 61



9.68 The proposed building would be 16m – 24m from the 3-5 storey element of 
Bedford House to the west. Due to the reasonable distances and position the 
proposal is unlikely to lead to serious loss of amenity for these neighbours in 
terms overlooking or privacy. The proposal would create a development to mirror 
that of Bedford House creating a similar outlook for occupiers and neighbours 
which is common across the Borough where sites lie directly opposite each other.  

9.69 The proposal would maintain reasonable separation between 14m – 42m from 
flats and houses in Dartmouth House to the south. Due to the building position 
and orientation with Dartmouth House the proposal would not result in undue 
overlooking to the secondary kitchen or bedroom windows of these flats with no 
direct loss of privacy for these neighbouring occupiers.  

9.70 The proposal building would be between 34-42m from the houses in Elmwood 
Road nos. 11, 13, 15 to the south east. The proposed building would be 
compliant with minimum window to window distances in terms of privacy and 
outlook. The step up in form would limit the building impact in terms of 
overlooking on to the rear garden of no.11 with the first 6 floors of the building 
being nearest to this neighbours garden. An assessment of window openings 
along the boundary with no.11 identifies 9 windows to 3 flats at levels 1-3 (three 
secondary living room windows and six to bedrooms, in addition to balconies for 
each flat); 3 further secondary windows to 3 more flats at levels 4-6 in addition to 
balconies. The inclusion of obscured glazing 1.7m up from internal floor level to 
these windows and details of balcony screening to these 6 flats would safeguard 
neighbours amenity and reduce the potential for overlooking. Furthermore the 
applicants point out that the impact of an establish tree line to the rear garden of 
no.11 further would further reduce the impact of the development on neighbour 
amenity. To conclude, the rear 10m of these properties would be safeguarded, 
as required by policy DM10.6.   

9.71 No windows would exist in the flank elevation of the proposed development 
currently in construction at the rear of 2 Bensham Lane to the north. The potential 
occupiers of this site are therefore unlikely to be directly impacted in terms of 
overlooking, privacy or outlook. The building would be 17m from the flank 
elevation and garden of 20 Bensham Lane. The building would step up away 
from this neighbour and is unlikely to significantly impact in terms of overlooking, 
outlook or loss of privacy.    

Noise 
9.72 The site is surrounded by a number of neighbours that could be affected by the 

development during demolition, construction or on completion. The applicants 
have submitted a Construction Logistics Plan (CLP). Environmental officers 
require further confirmation of the information submitted, the details of which 
would be updated to reflect amendments in the proposal and secured by pre-
commencement condition. Rigorous construction environmental management 
plans would be required to detail a range of mitigating measures to reduce these 
impacts insofar as possible and to minimise highway impacts during the 
construction phase. 

9.73 The proposed residential activity would create similar noise environment to that 
which currently exists. The proposed commercial use would need to be 

Page 62



constructed to suitable standard to safeguard internal noise, ventilation and 
extracts. Furthermore regard would need to be given to hours of use and overall 
general operation in order to safeguard neighbouring amenity (to be controlled 
through conditions of hours of use and an updated delivery and servicing plan). 
Environmental officers consider that the proposal would need to follow the 
recommendations, proposal and specification of the applicant’s acoustic report 
to be controlled by condition.   

Impact on the Surrounding Environment 
 

Microclimate 
9.74 The applicants have submitted an independent qualitative assessment of the 

likely wind conditions around the scheme.  The wind assessment considered the 
existing conditions surrounding the site and the affect the development may 
cause. The meteorological data indicates that prevailing winds blow from the 
south-west throughout with secondary winds blowing from the north east during 
the spring. Winds from other directions do occur, and are considered within the 
assessment; however, their impact tend to be low, due to being relatively 
infrequent (compared to the prevailing directions). 

9.75 The report identifies that all thoroughfares would have suitable wind conditions 
for the intended use and would not require mitigation measures. The wind 
microclimate at ground level is expected to be suitable for sitting to standing use 
during the windiest season, with no instances of strong winds likely to occur at 
the site or in the surrounding area. It is therefore suitable for intended pedestrian 
use. 

9.76 The entrance to the commercial unit on the south-west corner of the development 
would be expected to have strolling wind conditions during the windiest season. 
The report suggests mitigation measures such as setting back the entrance point 
by at least 1.5m. All other entrances would be expected to have standing or 
calmer wind conditions during the windiest season which is suitable for the 
intended use and would not require mitigation measures. All balconies and 
terraces (including external amenity areas at levels four, seven and nine) would 
be expected to have standing to sitting wind conditions during summer season 
which is suitable for the intended use and would not require mitigation measures. 
Officers accept the findings of the wind report. The Lawson method is generally 
considered as the model to establish suitable pedestrian conditions. Given the 
report findings, the surrounding environment and limited impact officers are 
satisfied that proposal would not adversely impact on pedestrian movement 
subject to appropriate mitigation along this part of Bensham Lane. A pre-
commencement condition is recommended to ensure further wind analysis and 
any mitigation measures are outlined in the landscaping scheme.  

Land Contamination 
9.77 An Independent assessment of the applicants Phase 1 contamination report has 

identified the site as previously used for motor vehicles prior to its storage activity. 
The site displays a low to moderate risk to potential occupiers and ground water 
receptors. Therefore given the sensitivity of the proposed development a Phase 
2 Intrusive Investigation should be undertaken. This should include chemical 
analysis of soil and groundwater, in conjunction with a programme of hazardous 

Page 63



gas monitoring to be undertaken, assessed and approved by the LPA prior to the 
commencement of work on-site, to demonstrate its suitability for residential use. 
This is proposed to be secured via conditions. 

Air Quality 
9.78 The site is in an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA). The submitted air quality 

assessment states that there would be no exceedances of either short term 
objectives for NO2 and that the development would be neutral in terms of 
construction and transport impacts. The air quality assessment found that the 
implementation of a range of appropriate site management practices to control 
dust emissions would significantly reduce the potential for adverse dust effects 
associated with the various stages of the works. The report identifies that residual 
effects, effect of construction vehicles, overall operation effects and future 
concentrations would not be significant. However notwithstanding these findings 
in line with policy DM23 to promote high standards of development and 
construction throughout the Borough environmental officers require a 
contribution of £6,300 towards air quality improvements to mitigate against non-
road transport emissions to be secured via the S.106 agreement. 

Flood Risk and Sustainable Drainage 
9.79 The application site is located within Flood Zone 1 and a low risk for surface 

water flooding. The submitted Flood Risk Statement sets out the strategy for 
managing roof runoff routed to site drainage, run off from soft and hard 
landscaping and inclusion of an attenuation tank routed to Thames Water 
sewers.  

9.80 The submitted strategy and overall approach meet most of the LLFA 
requirements; water flows across the site, the impact of permeable surfaces on 
site, meeting greenfield run off rates, water storage capacity levels, long term 
storage requirements; benefits of drainage strategy and details of off-site works. 
However, further clarification and additional information is required. Most of the 
points refer to infiltration testing with clarification of drainage scheme flow rates. 
The applicants have agreed to a pre-commencement condition to undertake the 
onsite infiltration testing prior to works.  

9.81 Thames Water have requested conditions concerning any potential piling on site 
and for the need for the applicants to apply for a ground water risk management 
permit (all of which are to be added). In addition to this various informatives 
advising the applicant on measures covering surface water, waste water 
network, sewage treatment with direct contact with Thames Water to minimise 
groundwater discharges into the public sewer are to be included. Officers 
consider that subject to the recommended conditions and informatives, the 
proposal would be acceptable in terms of drainage and flood risk. 

Light Pollution 
9.82 To avoid excessive light pollution, a condition is recommended requiring external 

lighting, including details of how it would minimise light pollution. 

Sustainable Design 
9.83 The Council would seek new homes to meet the needs of residents over a 

lifetime and be constructed using sustainable measures to reduce carbon 

Page 64



emissions. In line with Policy SI 2 of the London Plan and SP6.2 of the CLP 
(2018) the development proposals should make the fullest contribution to 
minimising carbon dioxide emissions (in major developments this must be zero 
carbon). The applicant’s energy statement confirms that 35% minimum carbon 
reduction based on the SAP report of 2012 to ensure emissions over Part L 2013 
as identified under the London Plan 2021 and CLP 2018. The remaining CO2 
emissions to be offset through a financial contribution. 

9.84 The development includes improvements in accordance with the energy 
hierarchy ‘Lean, Clean, Green’ outlined in Policy SI2 of the London Plan (2021) 
by providing high levels of building fabric, airtightness, reduction in thermal 
bridging, energy efficient lighting and system controls, mechanical ventilation 
controls, roof mounted air source heat pumps a communal photovoltaic panel 
system installed on the upper most of the roof area with commercial area 
benefiting from air to air VRF heating and cooling system. The proposed rooftop 
solar panels can be supported in principle, subject to further details provided by 
condition, including its visual impact from the streetscene, and townscape view 
to ensure that there is no addition to the perceived height of the building. With 
respect to “Be Lean” the proposal demonstrates a 10% and 17% reduction from 
energy efficiency measures for residential and non-residential elements 
respectively in accordance with London plan policy.  In addition to “Be Clean, Be 
Green’ the proposal includes an ambient loop distribution network (with heat 
pumps) with connections should a district heating network become available in 
the future. The non- residential space will also be fed by the communal heating 
system. Details of the heat pumps would ensure that the proposal complies with 
London Plan guidance.   

9.85 In line with Policy S12 the applicants have submitted a Whole Life Carbon 
Assessment which sets out the requirements to calculate and reduce Carbon 
emissions. This report captures the likely operational emissions, from 
construction over the entirety of the buildings life. This identifies the minimum 
requirements in respect to the building substructure, superstructure, product 
stage, construction stage, replacement stage and operational energy use at 
design stage prior to technical design. The report outlines a potential saving of 
339.4 – 599 tonnes of residual carbon. A condition requiring that the proposal 
adopts the strategy should ensure significant carbon reduction on this site. 

9.86 The scheme is expected to achieve at least 70% reduction in “Be Lean”, 68% 
reduction in “Be Clean” and 50% reduction in “Be Green” measures; through the 
combination of energy demand reduction measures and the heat Network and 
CO2 emissions shortfall. The shortfall would be covered by a carbon offset 
payment of £54,580 in accordance with GLA rate of £95 per tonne which would 
be secured through the S.106 agreement and will be used towards funding off-
site energy efficiency projects within Croydon. Furthermore the applicants state 
that the proposal would also meet the minimum water efficiency standard of 110 
litres per head per week.  

9.87 In line with reducing waste (and policy SI7 London Plan 2021) the applicant has 
produced a circular economy statement which identifies steps towards reuse of 
materials; reduction in construction material demands, waste management, 
waste generation and performance management. The GLA has stated that the 

Page 65



submitted statement outlines how these targets can be achieved and concludes 
that the approach aligns with the circular economy guidelines. A condition 
requiring the proposal is in accordance with the statement findings would ensure 
the proposal would accord with this requirement. 

Transport, Parking and Highways 
 
9.88 The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 5 very good (on a 

scale of 0-6b, where 6b is the most accessible). The site is well served by public 
transport, 71m north of London Road which is part of the Transport for London 
(TFL) Strategic Road Network which provides a number of bus routes. The site 
is located 100m north of the District Centre which contains a number of local 
amenities/shops. The site is in close proximity to West Croydon Station (850m) 
and lies within CPZ North which is operational Mon-Sat 9am-5pm with waiting 
restrictions in front of the site operating between the same hours; but no loading 
restrictions exist. 

Parking  
9.89 Due to the high PTAL, 4 car parking spaces are provided (3 accessible/disabled 

parking spaces and 1 car club vehicle spaces). The development is to be car-
free which is welcomed by the GLA, TfL and considered acceptable by officers. 
The proposal provides accessible parking spaces above the 3% required under 
the London Plan. The GLA requirement to extend this level to 10% through off 
site provision (if required) would be secured through a contribution for  on-street 
disabled parking to be secured through s.106 agreement, the cost to be agreed 
with Transport officers. The applicants have provided swept path manoeuvres to 
the proposed parking spaces to demonstrate that vehicles can access and 
egress the site safely in forward gear.  

9.90 Policy SP8.12 of CLP (2018) encourages the delivery of electric vehicle charging 
infrastructure throughout the borough to improve air quality and decarbonise 
private transportation over the plan period. In line with this policy the 4 car parking 
spaces would be provided with active EVCP's, which would be conditioned.  

9.91 The applicants transport assessment differs from officers’ view in relation to 
possible trip generation associated with the site. The applicants have however 
provided further information clarifying the proposed commercial/community uses 
associated with the site. Officers agree that a condition restricting the proposed 
uses to Classes E(g) ii, iii, F1 and F2 (excluding place of worship) only should 
ensure that no other uses would be permitted without appropriate assessment 
on the transport network. 

Cycle storage 
9.92 Officers are satisfied with the level of cycle storage provided which has been 

increased to the 110 spaces required by TfL together with staff storage and visitor 
cycle parking in line London Plan requirements. Details of cycle storage would 
confirm dimensions in all core areas, including aisle widths and identify the type 
of stands (for larger bikes) proposed and ensure a mix of Sheffield Stands. The 
applicants have confirmed that there will be no two tier racks. Electric sockets 
and a repair area for cycles with a pump etc will be required in the store or 
adjacent area the details to be secured by condition. The staff cycle store is 

Page 66



welcomed and the condition would ensure that its meet the same criteria as the 
residential store in terms of type of racks used widths of aisles and doors etc.  

Refuse and recycling storage 
9.93 In line with Council policy DM13 of CLP (2018) refuse storage is shown on the 

ground floor for the residential and commercial elements. The commercial 
element will require a separate trade refuse agreement, to be secured by 
condition. The furthest bin in the residential refuse store is within the 20m drag 
distance to the public highway for collection. A refuse management plan will need 
to be put in place prior to commencement of the development confirming the 
residential bin sizes/capacity and commercial collection details.  A 10sq.m are 
for bulky goods area is provided and considered acceptable. There will be a 
requirement for a dropped kerb to facilitate to facility the collection of the bins 
however this will form part of the section 278 highways agreement.  

Deliveries and servicing 
9.94 The applicants have proposed that delivery and servicing for the commercial 

premises will take place from the north of the site. In accordance with GLA and 
TfL comments a detailed delivery and service plan confirming both residential 
and commercial uses identifying vehicle drop off/access points; number of trips 
and regard to current delivery and waiting restrictions would need to be submitted 
to the LPA for approval prior to occupation to ensure an acceptable arrangement. 

Highway improvements 
9.95 Any new crossovers would need be reconstructed to current standards, and be 

no wider than 5-5.5m in width. Details of the proposed crossovers including 
vehicular and pedestrian sightlines will need to be provided prior to 
commencement. The applicants have agreed that all existing crossovers that are 
not to be reused will be removed as part of a s278 agreement at their cost. A 
condition survey of the public highway will be required prior to any works 
commencing on site. The improvement of the area of pavement immediately in 
front of the site (including paving material/design) would be secured through the 
s106 agreement through both the public realm schedule and will require 
engagement with highways and a highways agreement.  

Sustainable transport 
9.96 Policy SP8.13 of the CLP (2018) requires new development to contribute to the 

provision of electric vehicle charging infrastructure, car clubs and car sharing 
schemes, as well as promoting sustainable transport options such as cycling. 
The applicants have agreed to £37,000 in addition to 1 on site car club, 3 year 
car club memberships for future residential occupiers and 1 years membership 
for commercial operator to be secured through the s106 towards improvements 
towards sustainable transport. Furthermore, the s106 will remove access to all 
types of parking permits and contracts in council run car parks for the site as per 
policies in the Local Plan. 

Other Planning Issues 
 
9.97 A TV and Radio signal impact assessment shall be secured via s.106 to ensure 

that there is no interference to the reception of digital terrestrial television 
services or digital satellite television services within an agreed survey area. 

Page 67



9.98 In order to ensure that the benefits of the proposed development (including those 
required to mitigate the harm caused) reach local residents who may be impacted 
indirectly or directly by the proposal’s impacts a contribution for skills, training 
and employment strategy for the construction phase of £27,500 and given the 
commercial unit also for the operational phase of £3,984, to be secured through 
s.106 obligation. 

9.99 The development is liable for a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) payment to 
ensure that development contributes to meeting the need for physical and social 
infrastructure, including educational and healthcare facilities across the borough. 

Conclusion  
 
9.100 The proposed development would introduce a significant amount of new 

housing, including a mix of unit sizes and genuinely affordable housing in the 
form of London Affordable Rent units, as well as Shared Ownership units. In 
addition the scheme would provide an improved commercial unit with increased 
employment potential. The proposed development is of a high quality design and 
would ensure a good standard of accommodation for new residents and their 
neighbours. The development would be car-free, environmentally sustainable 
and would comply with the aspirations of the Development Plan in this regard. 
The proposal constitutes a strict departure based on height, but this is clearly 
outweighed by other material considerations. The residual planning impacts 
would be adequately mitigated by the recommended s.106 obligations and 
planning conditions. 

9.101 All other relevant policies and considerations, including equalities, have been 
taken into account. 

9.102 It is recommended that planning permission is granted in line with the officer 
recommendation for the reasons summarised in this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 68



Appendices 
 
 
AP1: Drawing numbers 
 
 BEN-AST-XX-XX-DR-A 01 0000 Site location plan - Existing  
 BEN-AST-XX-XX-DR-A 01 0600 Site location plan - Proposed  
 BEN-AST-XX-B1-DR-A 01 0709 Proposed Plan B01  
 BEN-AST-XX-00-DR-A 01 0710 Proposed Plan L00  
 BEN-AST-XX-01-DR-A 01 0711 Proposed Plan L01  
 BEN-AST-XX-02-DR-A 01 0712 Proposed Plan L02  
 BEN-AST-XX-03-DR-A 01 0713 Proposed Plan L03  
 BEN-AST-XX-04-DR-A 01 0714 Proposed Plan L04  
 BEN-AST-XX-05-DR-A 01 0715 Proposed Plan L05  
 BEN-AST-XX-06-DR-A 01 0716 Proposed Plan L06  
 BEN-AST-XX-07-DR-A 01 0717 Proposed Plan L07  
 BEN-AST-XX-08-DR-A 01 0718 Proposed Plan L08  
 BEN-AST-XX-09-DR-A 01 0719 Proposed Plan L09  
 BEN-AST-XX-10-DR-A 01 0720 Proposed Plan L10  
 BEN-AST-XX-RF-DR-A 01 0721 Proposed Roof Plan  
 BEN-AST-XX-XX-DR-A 01 0800 Proposed Elevations  
 BEN-AST-XX-XX-DR-A 01 0801 Proposed Elevations - Northeast, Southwest and 

Southeast 
 BEN-AST-XX-XX-DR-A 01 0900 Proposed Sections 

 
Landscape Plans 
 BEN-AST-XX-00-DR-L 01 5710 Proposed Ground Floor Plan 
 BEN-AST-XX-ZZ-DR-L 01 5711 Proposed Roof levels Plan  
 BEN-AST-XX-ZZ-DR-L 01 5712 Proposed Planting Plan  
 BEN-AST-XX-ZZ-DR-L 01 5713 Proposed Tree Plan 

 
 
AP2: Planning Policies and Guidance 
 
The following lists set out the most relevant policies and guidance, although they are not 
exhaustive and the provisions of the whole Development Plan apply (in addition to further 
material considerations). 
 
London Plan (2021) 
 

 GG2 Making best use of land 
 GG4 Delivering homes Londoners need 
 D1 London’s form, character and capacity for growth 
 D3 Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach 
 D4 Delivering good design 
 D5 Inclusive design 
 D6 Housing quality and standards 
 D7 Accessible housing 
 D8 Public realm 
 D9 Tall buildings  
 D10 Basement Development 
 D11 Safety, security and resilience to emergency  
 D12 Fire safety 
 D13 Agent of Change 

Page 69



 H1 Increasing housing supply 
 H2 Small sites 
 H4 Delivering affordable housing 
 H5 Threshold approach to applications 
 H6 Affordable housing tenure 
 H10 Housing size mix 
 G5 Urban greening 
 G6 Biodiversity and access to nature 
 G7 Trees and woodlands 
 S4 Play and informal recreation 
 SI1 Improving air quality 
 SI2 Minimising greenhouse gas emissions 
 SI5 Water infrastructure 
 SI7 Reducing waste and supporting the circular economy 
 SI12 Flood risk management 
 SI13 Sustainable drainage 
 T4 Assessing and mitigating transport impacts 
 T5 Cycling 
 T6 Car parking 
 T6.1 Residential parking 
 T7 Deliveries, servicing and construction 

 
 Croydon Local Plan (2018) 

Strategic Policies: 

 SP2 Homes 
 SP3 Employment 
 SP4 Urban design and local character 
 SP6 Environment and Climate Change 
 SP8 Transport and communication 

 
 Local Plan Policies: 

 DM1 Homes 
 DM8 Development in edge of centre  and out of centre locations 
 DM10 Design and character  
 DM13 Refuse and recycling 
 DM14 Public art  
 DM15 Tall and large buildings 
 DM23 Development and construction 
 DM25 Sustainable drainage systems 
 DM27 Protection and enhancing biodiversity 
 DM28 Trees 
 DM29 Promoting sustainable travel and reducing congestion 
 DM30 Car and cycle parking in new development  

 
         Place Specific Policy 
 

Page 70



 DM36 Broad Green and Selhurst  
 
         Supplementary planning Guidance SPG 
 

 London Housing SPG, March 2016. 
 Homes for Londoners: Affordable Housing and Viability SPG, August 2017. 
 National Technical Housing Standards, 2015. 
 National Planning Practice Guidance, 2014. 
 Supplementary Planning Document (SPD2) Suburban Design Guide 2019. 
 Accessible London: Achieving an Inclusive Environment (October 2014) 
 The control of dust and emissions during construction and demolition (July 

2014) 
 Character and Context (June 2014) 
 Sustainable Design and Construction (April 2014) 
 Play and Informal Recreation (September 2012) 
 All London Green Grid (March 2012) 
 Planning for Equality and Diversity in London (October 2007) Croydon 
 SPG12 Landscaping Design 
 Public realm Design Guide 2019 
 Section 106 – Planning obligations in Croydon and their relationship to the 

community infrastructure levy  
 
 
 
AP3: Daylight to existing buildings 
 
The BRE Guidelines stipulate that the diffuse daylighting of the existing building may be 
adversely affected if either: the vertical sky component (VSC) measured at the centre of an 
existing main window is less than 27%, and less than 0.8 times its former value (or reduced 
by more than 20%) known as “the VSC test” or the area of the working plane in a room 
which can receive direct skylight is reduced to less than 0.8 times its former value known as 
the “daylight distribution” (DD) test. 
 
Sunlight to existing buildings 
The BRE Guidelines stipulate that the sunlight of an existing window may be adversely 
affected if the centre of the window: receives less than 25% of annual probable sunlight 
hours (APSH), or less than 5% of annual winter probable sunlight hours between 21 
September and 21 March (WPSH); and receives less than 0.8 times its former sunlight hours 
(or a 20% reduction) during either period; and has a reduction in sunlight received over the 
whole year greater than 4% of annual 
probable sunlight hours. If one of the above tests is met, the dwelling is not considered to be 
adversely affected. 
 
 
 
 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA  

PART 8: Other Planning Matters 

1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 In this part of the agenda are reports on planning matters, other than planning 
applications for determination by the Committee and development presentations.  

1.2 Although the reports are set out in a particular order on the agenda, the Chair may 
reorder the agenda on the night. Therefore, if you wish to be present for a particular 
application, you need to be at the meeting from the beginning. 

1.3 The following information and advice applies to all those reports. 

2 FURTHER INFORMATION 

2.1 Members are informed that any relevant material received since the publication of 
this part of the agenda, concerning items on it, will be reported to the Committee in 
an Addendum Update Report. 

3 PUBLIC SPEAKING 

3.1 The Council’s constitution only provides for public speaking rights for those 
applications being reported to Committee in the “Planning Applications for Decision” 
part of the agenda. Therefore reports on this part of the agenda do not attract public 
speaking rights. 

4 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

4.1 For further information about the background papers used in the drafting of the 
reports in part 7 contact Mr P Mills (020 8760 5419). 

5 RECOMMENDATION 

5.1 The Committee to take any decisions recommended in the attached reports. 

Page 73

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

1 
 

Bernard Weatherill House 
8 Mint Walk 

                        Croydon CR0 1EA  
 
 

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT - PLACE DEPARTMENT 
 
 

DELEGATED PLANNING DECISIONS 
(Ward Order) 

 

The following is a list of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Development Management under delegated powers since 

the last meeting of the Planning Committee. 

16.08.2021 to 27.08.2021  
 

Note: This list also includes those decisions made by Planning 
Committee and released in this time frame as shown within the 

level part of each case. 

  
NOTE: The cases listed in this report can be viewed on the Council’s Website. 

Please note that you can also view the information supplied within this list and see more details 
relating to each application (including the ability to view the drawings submitted and the decision 
notice) by visiting our Online Planning Service at the Croydon Council web site 
(www.croydon.gov.uk/onlineplans).  

Once on the Council web page please note the further information provided before selecting the 
Public Access Planning Register link. Once selected there will be various options to select the 
Registers of recently received or decided applications. Also; by entering a reference number if known 
you are able to ascertain details relating to a particular application. (Please remember to input the 
reference number in full by inserting any necessary /’s or 0’s) 

 
 
 

                        

    

Ref. No. : 21/01446/CAT Ward : Addiscombe East 
Location : 9 Havelock Road 

Croydon 
CR0 6QQ 

Type: Works to Trees in a 
Conservation Area 

Page 75

Agenda Item 8.1



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

2 
 

Proposal : T1 Oak. Reduce the regrowth by approximately 2 meters to suitable growth points to 
maintain the tree within its environment. T2 Eucalyptus. Reduce crown of tree by 3 
meters, to suitable growth points to maintain the tree within its environment. T3 and T4 
Holly. Reduce crown by 3 meters, trim and reshape to maintain the tree within its 
environment. 

    

Date Decision: 24.08.21  
    

No objection (tree works in Con Areas) 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting             

    

Ref. No. : 21/02167/HSE Ward : Addiscombe East 
Location : 101 Bingham Road 

Croydon 
CR0 7EL 
 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Erection of a single storey rear extension to the house 
    

Date Decision: 26.08.21  
    

Permission Refused 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting      

    

Ref. No. : 21/02264/HSE Ward : Addiscombe East 
Location : 24 Ashburton Avenue 

Croydon 
CR0 7JE 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Demolition and erection of single storey rear extension 
    

Date Decision: 26.08.21  
    

Permission Granted 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting                         

    

Ref. No. : 21/02784/HSE Ward : Addiscombe East 
Location : 108 Outram Road 

Croydon 
CR0 6XF 
 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Erection of single storey side/rear extension and construction of loft conversion with 
rooflights in the front and side roofslope and dormer in the rear slope. 

    

Date Decision: 27.08.21  
    

Permission Granted 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting       

Page 76



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

3 
 

    

Ref. No. : 21/02881/FUL Ward : Addiscombe East 
Location : 199A Lower Addiscombe Road 

Croydon 
CR0 6RA 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Alterations, Erection of Dormer Loft Extension in Rear Roof Slope. 
    

Date Decision: 23.08.21  
    

Permission Granted 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting         

    

Ref. No. : 21/03009/HSE Ward : Addiscombe East 
Location : 19 East India Way 

Croydon 
CR0 6NZ 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Conversion of the garage into a habitable room and a part width single storey rear 
extension 

    

Date Decision: 27.08.21  
    

Permission Granted 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting              

    

Ref. No. : 21/03210/HSE Ward : Addiscombe East 
Location : 58 Pagehurst Road 

Croydon 
CR0 6NR 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Erection of single storey rear extension 
    

Date Decision: 20.08.21  
    

Permission Granted 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting                                                 

    

Ref. No. : 21/03469/HSE Ward : Addiscombe East 
Location : 8 Havelock Road 

Croydon 
CR0 6QP 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Double hip to gable roof extension with rear dormer and roof lights on front slope. 
    

Date Decision: 24.08.21  
    

Permission Refused 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting                                          

 

Page 77



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

4 
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/03731/GPDO Ward : Addiscombe West 
Location : 67 Cedar Road 

Croydon 
CR0 6UJ 
 

Type: Prior Appvl - Class A Larger 
House Extns 

Proposal : Erection of a single storey rear extension projecting out 6 metres from the rear wall of the 
original house with a height to the eaves of 2.87 metres and a maximum height of 3.63 
metres 

   

Date Decision: 25.08.21  
    

Prior Approval No Jurisdiction (GPDO) 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03796/GPDO Ward : Addiscombe West 
Location : 9 Fullerton Road 

Croydon 
CR0 6JD 
 

Type: Prior Appvl - Class A Larger 
House Extns 

Proposal : Erection of single storey rear extension projecting out 5.186metres with a maximum 
height of 3.36 metres 

   

Date Decision: 24.08.21  
    

Prior Approval No Jurisdiction (GPDO) 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/04187/NMA Ward : Addiscombe West 
Location : 59 - 61 Addiscombe Road 

Croydon 
CR0 6SD 
 

Type: Non-material amendment 

Proposal : Non-material amendment (to change window positioning and extension layout) attached 
to planning permission ref 17/04442/FUL for Alterations, erection of third floor and partial 
fourth floor within the roof space, four storey lift tower, front extension and a three storey 
side/rear extension with undercroft vehicular access and car parking 

   

Date Decision: 23.08.21  
    

Approved 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/04202/NMA Ward : Addiscombe West 

Page 78



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

5 
 

Location : 28 - 30 Addiscombe Grove 
Croydon 
CR0 5LP 
 
 

Type: Non-material amendment 

Proposal : Non-material amendment (changes to approved tile pattern to west elevation) to Planning 
Permission 17/02680/FUL for Demolition of existing buildings including parking garage 
and redevelopment of the sites for a part 9, 20 and 21 storey building comprising 153 
residential dwellings (Class C3) and a single storey sub-station; hard and soft 
landscaping, cycle and car parking facilities; plant areas and other ancillary works 

   

Date Decision: 24.08.21  
    

Approved 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 
    

    

Ref. No. : 21/02484/HSE Ward : Bensham Manor 
Location : 41 Beechwood Avenue 

Thornton Heath 
CR7 7DZ 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Demolition and erection of single storey rear extension. 
   
Date Decision: 27.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   

    

Ref. No. : 21/02577/DISC Ward : Bensham Manor 
Location : Bensham House 

324 Bensham Lane 
Thornton Heath 
CR7 7EQ 
 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of Conditions 2, 7 and 14 attached to Planning Permission 19/04351/CONR 
for Variation to Condition 26 - List of Approved Drawings - of planning permission 
16/06483/FUL for Demolition of existing buildings, erection of a six storey building 
(including lower ground floor) fronting Bensham Lane comprising up to 34 flats, erection 
of three storey terrace building (including lower ground floor) comprising up to 6 flats and 
up to 7 townhouses, formation of vehicular accesses and provision of associated off-
street parking, provision of associated refuse and cycle storage. 

   
Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Part Approved / Part Not Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   

    

Ref. No. : 21/02910/DISC Ward : Bensham Manor 

Page 79



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

6 
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/00889/HSE Ward : Broad Green 
Location : 15 Martin Crescent 

Croydon 
CR0 3JQ 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Increase in roof height, erection of a hip to gable, dormer in rear roof slope and roof lights 
in front roof slope 

   

Location : 65 Brigstock Road 
Thornton Heath 
CR7 7JH 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Details pursuant to condtion 2 ( landscaping) in respect to planning permission 
15/05548/p for erection of a lower ground floor and upper ground floor side extension, 
rear extension a lower ground, ground and first floors and construction of dormer 
extension in rear roof slope, together with lower ground floor light wells; conversion to 
form 2 three bedroom, 1 studio flat, 3 one bedroom and 1 two bedroom flats 

   
Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   

    

Ref. No. : 21/03013/FUL Ward : Bensham Manor 
Location : 327 Bensham Lane 

Thornton Heath 
CR7 7ER 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Proposed change of use of the ground floor unit from Class E(c)(ii) Professional services 
(other than health or medical services) to Class C3 dwellinghouses, forming a one 
bedroom unit. 

   
Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   

    

Ref. No. : 21/03496/LP Ward : Bensham Manor 
Location : 27 Norman Road 

Thornton Heath 
CR7 7ED 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Erection of rear dormer extension, single-storey rear extension and installation of 3 
rooflights in front roofslope. 

   
Date Decision: 20.08.21 
    

Lawful Dev. Cert. Granted (proposed) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   

 

Page 80



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

7 
 

Date Decision: 18.08.21  
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/02679/LE Ward : Broad Green 
Location : 77 Nova Road 

Croydon 
CR0 2TN 

Type: LDC (Existing) Use edged 

Proposal : Application for the issue of a certificate of lawful use of the building as a large HMO 
   

Date Decision: 24.08.21  
    

Withdrawn application 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03137/HSE Ward : Broad Green 
Location : 140 Handcroft Road 

Croydon 
CR0 3LE 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Erection of single storey side/rear extension. 
   

Date Decision: 23.08.21  
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03305/HSE Ward : Broad Green 
Location : 96 Onslow Road 

Croydon 
CR0 3NL 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Alterations, erection of two-storey side extension, single-storey side/rear extension and 
installation of 1 rooflight in front roofslope. 

   

Date Decision: 17.08.21  
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03351/HSE Ward : Broad Green 
Location : 18 Montague Road 

Croydon 
CR0 3SS 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Loft conversion, with rooflights in the front roof slope and single storey rear/side 
extension. 

   

Date Decision: 26.08.21  

Page 81



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

8 
 

    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03379/LP Ward : Broad Green 
Location : 41 Lennard Road 

Croydon 
CR0 2UL 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Erection of front porch 
   

Date Decision: 25.08.21  
    

Lawful Dev. Cert. Granted (proposed) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03417/GPDO Ward : Broad Green 
Location : 3 Churchill Mews 

137 Dennett Road 
Croydon 
CR0 3JH 
 

Type: Prior Appvl - Class O offices to 
houses 

Proposal : Prior approval application for change of use from office (Class E) to a 2 bedroom 
dwellinghouse (Class C3). 

   

Date Decision: 19.08.21  
    

(Approval) refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03432/HSE Ward : Broad Green 
Location : 24 Grafton Road 

Croydon 
CR0 3RP 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Erection of single storey side/rear extension 
   

Date Decision: 19.08.21  
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03577/GPDO Ward : Broad Green 
Location : 1 Nova Road 

Croydon 
CR0 2TN 
 

Type: Prior Appvl - Class A Larger 
House Extns 

Page 82



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

9 
 

Proposal : Erection of a single storey rear extension projecting out 3.5 metres from the rear wall of 
the original house with a height to the eaves of 3 metres and a maximum overall height of 
3 metres 

   

Date Decision: 25.08.21  
    

Prior Approval No Jurisdiction (GPDO) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03636/LP Ward : Broad Green 
Location : 18 Stonecroft Way 

Croydon 
CR0 3DG 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Erection of hip to gable roof extension to side roofslope and dormer extension on rear 
roofslope, and Installation of three (3) rooflights to front roofslope 

   

Date Decision: 18.08.21  
    

Lawful Dev. Cert. Granted (proposed) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 19/04481/DISC Ward : Crystal Palace And Upper 
Norwood 

Location : 2 Harold Road 
Upper Norwood 
London 
SE19 3PU 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of Condition 13 (Contaminated land assessment) of planning application 
reference: 16/06374/FUL (Demolition of garages. Erection of four/ five/ six storey building 
comprising 14 two bedroom and 1 one bedroom flats. Erection of 2 three-storey and 11 
two-storey three bedroom houses with associated car parking, landscaping and 
associated works). 

   

   
Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/01842/FUL Ward : Crystal Palace And Upper 
Norwood 

Page 83



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

10 
 

Location : Flat 6  
224 South Norwood Hill 
South Norwood 
London 
SE25 6AS 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Alterations, including increasing the height of the roof to accommodate the conversion of 
a loft space into a roof terrace and the installation of the associated stair access from the 
existing dwelling. 

   

   
Date Decision: 27.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/02857/DISC Ward : Crystal Palace And Upper 
Norwood 

Location : 53 Harold Road 
Upper Norwood 
London 
SE19 3SP 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of condition 3 attached to Planning Permission: 20/06416/HSE, for alterations, 
erection of first floor side/rear extension. 
 

   

   
Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03266/LP Ward : Crystal Palace And Upper 
Norwood 

Location : 4 Sunset Gardens 
South Norwood 
London 
SE25 4AX 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Construction of hip to gable loft conversion and dormer in rear roof slope and roof lights 
in the front roof slope. 

   

   
Date Decision: 20.08.21 
    

Lawful Dev. Cert. Granted (proposed) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03286/NMA Ward : Crystal Palace And Upper 

Page 84



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

11 
 

Norwood 
Location : Land At Victory Place/ Carberry Road/ 

Carberry Works, Crystal Palace, SE19 3RU 
 
 

Type: Non-material amendment 

Proposal : Non-Material Amendments to Planning Permission 20/01004/CONR for Variation of 
Condition 22 - approved drawings- of Planning Permission 15/02658/P (by association 
with Refs: 17/04227/NMA &18/01817/NMA) for the demolition of some of the existing 
buildings on site and redevelopment and reuse to provide a mixed use scheme 
comprising retail within Class A1 (at ground floor level), flexible retail/office/studio space 
within Classes A1 and B1 (at ground floor level) including an element of D1 (community) 
use, restaurant/bar within Classes A3/A4 (at ground level), apart-hotel/hotel within Class 
C1 (at ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd floor levels), office within Class B1 (at 1st & 2nd floor level), 
together with residential accommodation (Class C3) comprising a mix of 1 studio, 18 one 
bedroom, 9 two-bedroom and 5 three-bedroom flats (at 1st, 2nd and 3rd floor levels) and 
associated amenity space. Provision of a covered space for use as a market and 
entertainment space. Provision of associated disabled car parking, secure cycle storage 
and refuse/recycling storage areas. 

   

   
Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03364/HSE Ward : Crystal Palace And Upper 
Norwood 

Location : 126 Queen Mary Road 
Upper Norwood 
London 
SE19 3NP 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : The erection of a single storey rear/side extension and first floor rear extension. 
   

   
Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03376/HSE Ward : Crystal Palace And Upper 
Norwood 

Location : 12 High View Road 
Upper Norwood 
London 
SE19 3SS 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Erection of rear roof extension 
   

   

Page 85



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

12 
 

Date Decision: 19.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03405/HSE Ward : Crystal Palace And Upper 
Norwood 

Location : Holmwood  
Mowbray Road 
Upper Norwood 
London 
SE19 2RJ 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Demolition of the existing garage and construction of two storey side extension 
   

   
Date Decision: 20.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03526/CAT Ward : Crystal Palace And Upper 
Norwood 

Location : 132 Auckland Road 
Upper Norwood 
London 
SE19 2RQ 

Type: Works to Trees in a 
Conservation Area 

Proposal : T1 = Common yew, to be removed 
T2 = London plane, to be removed 
T3 = Holly, to be removed  
T4 = For reference only, Ash to remain 
T5 & T6 = Hollies to be removed  
Trees to be removed are mainly self-seeded, providing no visual amenity 

   

   
Date Decision: 24.08.21 
    

No objection (tree works in Con Areas) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03628/CAT Ward : Crystal Palace And Upper 
Norwood 

Location : 25 Sylvan Road 
Upper Norwood 
London 
SE19 2RU 
 

Type: Works to Trees in a 
Conservation Area 

Page 86



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

13 
 

Proposal : T1 - Decayed Lime: Fell 
T2 - Decayed Lime: Fell 
T3 - Lime: Repollard to historical points 
T4 - Willow: Fell 
T5 - Ash: Fell 
T6 - Sycamore: Remove 2x lowest limbs 
T7 - Lime: Remove 3 -4 lateral limbs facing no. 25 and cut back rest to give 1.5 - 1.8 
Metre clearance to no. 27 
T8 - Dead Elder: Fell 
G9 - 2x Limes: Repollard to historical pruning points 
T10 - Lime: Repollard to historical pruning points 

   

   
Date Decision: 24.08.21 
    

No objection (tree works in Con Areas) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   

 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/01649/DISC Ward : Coulsdon Town 
Location : Car Park And Adjoining Land Lion Green 

Road  
Coulsdon 
CR5 2NL 
 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of condition 8 (Noise Levels), 10 (Mechanical Ventilation), 11 (NOx 
reductions), 23 (Flood Risk) and 26 (Contaminated Land) attached to permission 
17/06297/FUL for redevelopment of site to provide 5no. five, six, seven storey buildings 
providing 96 one bedroom, 42 two bedroom and 19 three bedroom flats: provision of 
vehicular access, residential and town centre car parking spaces, hard and soft 
landscaping works and new private and public amenity space. 

   

Date Decision: 16.08.21  
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/02583/FUL Ward : Coulsdon Town 
Location : 2 Coniston Road 

Coulsdon 
CR5 3BS 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Proposed hip-to-gable roof alteration to the existing dwelling. Proposed demolition of the 
existing garage and erection of an attached two storey end of terrace three bedroom 
dwelling with rear dormer. 

   

Date Decision: 27.08.21  
    

Permission Refused 

Page 87



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

14 
 

  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/02729/CONR Ward : Coulsdon Town 
Location : 209 Chipstead Valley Road 

Coulsdon 
CR5 3BR 
 

Type: Removal of Condition 

Proposal : Variation of Conditions 2 (Approved Plans) attached to planning permission 
19/05713/FUL relating to demolition of existing rear storage building, erection of a two 
storey side extension, part one part two storey rear extension and dormer extension in 
rear roof slope to enlarge existing retail unit (A1 Use Class) and form financial and 
professional services (A2 Use Class) at first and second floors of the building following 
conversion of existing ancillary storage space. 
 

   

Date Decision: 24.08.21  
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03414/HSE Ward : Coulsdon Town 
Location : 16 Howard Road 

Coulsdon 
CR5 2EA 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Demolition of detached garage, erection of a two storey side/rear extension, single storey 
rear extension, rear dormer and front porch. Creation of a side annexe 

   

Date Decision: 23.08.21  
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03537/TRE Ward : Coulsdon Town 
Location : 1 Tickners Way 

Coulsdon 
Croydon 
CR5 3GG 
 

Type: Consent for works to protected 
trees 

Proposal : Sycamore - T1 - To crown lift mature sycamore to 6.0m ground clearance on garden side 
only. 
(TPO 25, 1993) 

   

Date Decision: 24.08.21  
    

Consent Granted (Tree App.) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

Page 88



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

15 
 

    

Ref. No. : 21/04158/NMA Ward : Coulsdon Town 
Location : 8 Downs Road 

Coulsdon 
CR5 1AA 
 

Type: Non-material amendment 

Proposal : Demolition of existing lean to and wc and erection of single storey side/rear extension 
(amendment to application 20/06187/HSE) 

   

Date Decision: 16.08.21  
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   

 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/00728/DISC Ward : Fairfield 
Location : 25A - 27 Tamworth Place 

Croydon 
CR0 1RL 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of condition 9 (cycle storage) pursuant to planning permission 20/00206/FUL. 
   

Date Decision: 25.08.21  
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/01459/DISC Ward : Fairfield 
Location : Land Adjoining East Croydon Station, 

Bounded By George Street (Including 1-5 
Station Approach), Dingwall Road, (Including 
The Warehouse Theatre), Lansdowne Road 
And Including Land To The North Of 
Lansdowne Road, Croydon 
 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Page 89



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

16 
 

Proposal : Discharge of Condition 16 (Delivery and servicing management plan) in respect of Plot 
B04/B05 attached to planning permission 20/01503/CONR for development without 
compliance with conditions 7 (approved plans), 71 (B04 wind mitigation), 72 (B04 design 
details), 73 (B05 reveal depths) and 74 (B05 design details) subject to which previous 
planning permission 11/00631/P (The erection of five buildings with a minimum floor area 
of 53,880 sq metres and maximum of 62,080 sq metres to provide a minimum of 550 and 
a maximum of 625 residential units; erection of up to 6 buildings for class B1 use for a 
minimum of 88,855 sq metres and a maximum of 151, 420 sq metres; provision of a 
minimum of 7285 sq metres and a maximum of 10,900 sq metres of retail (class A1-A5 
floorspace); provision of a maximum of 400 sq metres of community use (class D1); 
provision of a replacement theatre of 200 seats; provision of energy centre and estate 
management facilities; formation of vehicular accesses and provision of pedestrian routes 
public open space and car parking not to exceed 256 parking spaces) was granted to 
allow for a revised office building across plots B04 and B05. (This application is 
accompanied by an Environmental Statement Addendum) 

   

Date Decision: 16.08.21  
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/02249/DISC Ward : Fairfield 
Location : Sydenham Court  

52 Sydenham Road 
Croydon 
CR0 2EF 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Details pursuant to Conditions 4 (landscaping), 7 (parking) , 12 (external lighting)  ref 
19/04764/ful granted for The proposed demolition of the existing buildings followed by the 
re-development of a new residential development consisting of two separate blocks  (6 
storey's and 4 storey's respectively) containing 43 new homes, new hard and soft 
landscaping, courtyards, cycle and vehicle parking with refuse areas. 

   

Date Decision: 16.08.21  
    

Part Approved / Part Not Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/02688/FUL Ward : Fairfield 
Location : Skyline Court  

74 Park Lane 
Croydon 
CR0 1JH 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Remedial Works to External Cladding and Replacement of Decking 
   

Date Decision: 23.08.21  
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

Page 90



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

17 
 

    

Ref. No. : 21/03191/DISC Ward : Fairfield 
Location : 39A & 39B Chatsworth Road 

Croydon 
CR0 1HF 
 
 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of Conditions 6 and 12 attached to Planning Permission 20/03443/FUL for 
Alterations to basement and ground floor internal layout to form 1 additional flat (in 
association with planning permission 18/05322/FUL and associated non-material 
amendment applications 20/00877/NMA and 20/03821/NMA for Demolition of existing 
buildings, erection of two storey building with accommodation in basement and in 
roofspace and comprising 8 flats provision of associated off-street parking to rear, 
provision of associated refuse storage and cycle storage to the rear. 
 

   

Date Decision: 23.08.21  
    

Part Approved / Part Not Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03214/FUL Ward : Fairfield 
Location : O/S 114 - 120 North End 

Croydon 
CR9 1SH 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Proposed installation of 1no. new BT Street Hub, incorporating 75" LCD advert screens 
plus the removal of associated BT kiosks 

   

Date Decision: 26.08.21  
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03216/FUL Ward : Fairfield 
Location : O/S 83 - 85 North End 

Croydon 
CR0 1TJ 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Proposed installation of 1no. new BT Street Hub, incorporating 75" LCD advert screens 
plus the removal of associated BT kiosks 

   

Date Decision: 26.08.21  
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Page 91



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

18 
 

Ref. No. : 21/03218/FUL Ward : Fairfield 
Location : O/S 44 - 46 North End 

Croydon 
CR0 1UG 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Proposed installation of 1no. new BT Street Hub, incorporating 75" LCD advert screens 
plus the removal of associated BT kiosks 

   

Date Decision: 26.08.21  
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03220/FUL Ward : Fairfield 
Location : Pavement O/S 5 - 9 North End 

Croydon 
CR0 1TY 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Proposed installation of 1no. new BT Street Hub, incorporating 75" LCD advert screens 
plus the removal of associated BT kiosks 

   

Date Decision: 26.08.21  
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03226/FUL Ward : Fairfield 
Location : O/S 35 High Street 

Croydon 
CR0 1QB 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Proposed installation of 1no. new BT Street Hub, incorporating 75" LCD advert screens 
   

Date Decision: 26.08.21  
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03232/FUL Ward : Fairfield 
Location : O/S 24 - 26 George Street 

Croydon 
CR0 1PB 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Proposed installation of 1no. new BT Street Hub, incorporating 75" LCD advert screens 
   

Date Decision: 26.08.21  
    

Permission Refused 

Page 92



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

19 
 

  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03267/DISC Ward : Fairfield 
Location : Sydenham Court 

52 Sydenham Road 
Croydon 
CR0 2EF 
 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Details pursuant to Condition 19 (Fire Strategy ), of planning permission 19/04764/ful The 
proposed demolition of the existing buildings followed by the re-development of a new 
residential development consisting of two separate blocks  (6 storeys and 4 storeys 
respectively) containing 43 new homes, new hard and soft landscaping, courtyards, cycle 
and vehicle parking with refuse areas. 

   

Date Decision: 26.08.21  
    

Not approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03436/FUL Ward : Fairfield 
Location : Flat 1  

10 Beech House Road 
Croydon 
CR0 1JP 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Alterations, installation of ground floor window in side elevation and installation of 
replacement windows in side and front elevations. 

   

Date Decision: 20.08.21  
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

    

Ref. No. : 21/03948/DISC Ward : Fairfield 
Location : Sydenham Court  

52 Sydenham Road 
Croydon 
CR0 2EF 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Details pursuant to Condition 22 (Piling Method statement) of planning permission ref 
19/04764/FUL granted for Demolition of the existing buildings followed by the re-
development of a new residential development consisting of two separate blocks  (6 
storeys and 4 storeys respectively) containing 43 new homes, new hard and soft 
landscaping, courtyards, cycle and vehicle parking with refuse areas 

   

Date Decision: 16.08.21  
    

Approved 
  

Page 93



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

20 
 

Level: Delegated Business Meeting   

 

     

    

Ref. No. : 20/02074/FUL Ward : Kenley 
Location : Sycamores 

Kenley Lane 
Kenley 
CR8 5DF 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Demolition of existing single dwelling and construction of a building comprising 9 flats, 
associated vehicle and cycle parking, refuse storage and hard and soft landscaping. 

    

Date Decision: 16.08.21 
    

P. Granted with 106 legal Ag. (3 months) 
  
Level: Planning Committee    
    

Ref. No. : 20/05210/CONR Ward : Kenley 
Location : 90A Higher Drive 

Purley 
CR8 2HJ 

Type: Removal of Condition 

Proposal : Variation of Condition 2 (plans) and Condition 14 (flank facing windows) of 19/04119/FUL 
linked to planning application for the 'Demolition of the existing dwelling and erection of a 
four / five storey building comprising of 9 x 3 bedroom flats together with car parking, 
refuse store, internal bike store and landscaping.' 
 

    

Date Decision: 16.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/00960/FUL Ward : Kenley 
Location : 10 Haydn Avenue 

Purley 
CR8 4AE 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Alterations including part change of use of the site to an outdoor nursery (use class D1), 
including the erection of three temporary outbuildings to the rear of the site. 

    

Date Decision: 20.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02917/DISC Ward : Kenley 

Page 94



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

21 
 

Location : 1 Roke Road 
Kenley 
CR8 5NQ 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of Condition 3 (Privacy screens / cycle & refuse stores / visibility splays / 
playspace) attached to planning permission 18/05752/FUL for Demolition of the existing 
dwelling and erection of a two storey building comprising 1x two bedroom and 1x three 
bedroom flats. Provision of associated parking and amenity areas. 

    

Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Not approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03419/HSE Ward : Kenley 
Location : 21 Roke Road 

Kenley 
CR8 5NQ 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Lower ground/upper ground floor rear extension (following demolition of the existing 
conservatory) and alterations to the rear land levels including new steps and enlarged 
rear platform. 

    

Date Decision: 19.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03637/TRE Ward : Kenley 
Location : 4 Pond Close 

Kenley 
CR8 5FG 

Type: Consent for works to protected 
trees 

Proposal : Ash tree (Fraximus excelsion). Most branches are dead and the rest of it is dying. 
Located close to outbuilding in my garden and the neighbour's shed. I am concerned the 
tree may fall imminently. Needs urgent action - fell/remove tree. 
There are many other trees close to this Ash tree and another younger growing tree 
within 1meter so no need to replant. 

    

Date Decision: 24.08.21 
    

Withdrawn application 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03812/GPDO Ward : Kenley 
Location : 2 Little Roke Avenue 

Kenley 
CR8 5NG 
 

Type: Prior Appvl - Class A Larger 
House Extns 

Page 95



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

22 
 

Proposal : Erection of a single storey rear extension projecting out 4.35 metres from the rear wall of 
the original house with a height to the eaves of 3 metres and a maximum overall height of 
3.6 metres 

    

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Approved (prior approvals only) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

    

 

    

 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/02934/HSE Ward : Norbury Park 
Location : 51 St Oswald's Road 

Norbury 
London 
SW16 3SA 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Alterations, demolition of existing conservatory and erection of single-storey rear 
extension. 

   
    

Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03032/HSE Ward : Norbury Park 
Location : 48 Covington Way 

Norbury 
London 
SW16 3SQ 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Demolition of the existing garage and erection of a two storey side extension with front 
porch 

   
    

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03132/LP Ward : Norbury Park 
Location : 90 Christian Fields 

Norbury 
London 
SW16 3JX 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Page 96



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

23 
 

Proposal : Erection of hip to gable and rear dormer extension and installation of 3 rooflights in front 
roofslope 

   
    

Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Lawful Dev. Cert. Granted (proposed) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03236/FUL Ward : Norbury Park 
Location : O/S 1530 London Road 

Norbury 
London 
SW16 4EU 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Proposed installation of 1no. new BT Street Hub, incorporating 75" LCD advert screens 
plus the removal of associated BT kiosk(s). 

   
    

Date Decision: 26.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03366/HSE Ward : Norbury Park 
Location : 31 Crescent Way 

Norbury 
London 
SW16 3AL 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Demolition and erection of a single storey rear extension and construction of window and 
door in ground floor flank elevation. 

   
    

Date Decision: 26.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03407/LP Ward : Norbury Park 
Location : 53 Briar Avenue 

Norbury 
London 
SW16 3AB 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Erection of gabled loft conversion with dormer in the rear roof slope and roof lights in the 
front. 

   
    

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Page 97



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

24 
 

Lawful Dev. Cert. Granted (proposed) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03458/LP Ward : Norbury Park 
Location : 21 Granville Gardens 

Norbury 
London 
SW16 3LN 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Erection of single storey rear extension, rear dormer and 3 no. rooflights to front roof 
slope 

   
    

Date Decision: 20.08.21 
    

Certificate Refused (Lawful Dev. Cert.) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03594/CAT Ward : Norbury Park 
Location : The Cottage  

2 Copgate Path 
Norbury 
London 
SW16 3EA 

Type: Works to Trees in a 
Conservation Area 

Proposal : T1-T7 Firs: Fell 
   
    

Date Decision: 24.08.21 
    

No objection (tree works in Con Areas) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03679/GPDO Ward : Norbury Park 
Location : 71 Briar Avenue 

Norbury 
London 
SW16 3AG 
 

Type: Prior Appvl - Class A Larger 
House Extns 

Proposal : Erection of a single storey rear extension projecting out 4.0 metres from the rear wall of 
the original house with a height to the eaves and maximum overall height of 3.0m 

   
    

Date Decision: 20.08.21 
    

(Approval) refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

Page 98



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

25 
 

    

Ref. No. : 20/03623/FUL Ward : Norbury And Pollards Hill 
Location : 82 Pollards Hill North 

Norbury 
London 
SW16 4NY 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Demolition and erection of 5 houses and associated car parking, cycle parking, refuse 
storage and landscaping 

   
    

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Planning Committee - Minor Applications    
    

Ref. No. : 20/06162/FUL Ward : Norbury And Pollards Hill 
Location : 1112 London Road 

Norbury 
London 
SW16 4DT 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Change of use from car showroom, workshop and garage (Sui Generis) to MOT centre 
(B2 use) 

   
    

Date Decision: 20.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02014/HSE Ward : Norbury And Pollards Hill 
Location : 25 Newlands Road 

Norbury 
London 
SW16 4SL 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Erection of two storey rear extension; construction of dormer extension in rear roofslope 
and installation of rooflight in the front roofslope. 

   
    

Date Decision: 19.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03238/FUL Ward : Norbury And Pollards Hill 

Page 99



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

26 
 

Location : O/S 1513 - 1515 London Road 
Norbury 
London 
SW16 4AE 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Proposed installation of 1no. new BT Street Hub, incorporating 75" LCD advert screens 
plus the removal of associated BT kiosk(s). 

   
    

Date Decision: 26.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03240/FUL Ward : Norbury And Pollards Hill 
Location : O/S 1432 -1434 London Road 

Norbury 
London 
SW16 4BZ 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Proposed installation of 1no. new BT Street Hub, incorporating 75" LCD advert screens 
plus the removal of associated BT kiosk(s). 

   
    

Date Decision: 26.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03242/FUL Ward : Norbury And Pollards Hill 
Location : O/S 1449 London Road 

Norbury 
London 
SW16 4AQ 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Proposed installation of 1no. new BT Street Hub, incorporating 75" LCD advert screens 
plus the removal of associated BT kiosk(s). 

   
    

Date Decision: 26.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03244/FUL Ward : Norbury And Pollards Hill 

Page 100



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

27 
 

Location : O/S 1385 London Road 
Norbury 
London 
SW16 4AN 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Proposed installation of 1no. new BT Street Hub, incorporating 75" LCD advert screens 
plus the removal of associated BT kiosk(s). 

   
    

Date Decision: 26.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03954/LP Ward : Norbury And Pollards Hill 
Location : 20 Kilmartin Avenue 

Norbury 
London 
SW16 4RD 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Erection of single-storey rear/side/infill extension following demolition of existing rear/infill 
extension 

   
    

Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Certificate Refused (Lawful Dev. Cert.) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/00052/FUL Ward : Old Coulsdon 
Location : 85 Coulsdon Road 

Coulsdon 
CR5 2LD 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Demolition of the existing bungalow and the erection of 6 mews-style terraced cottages 
"L" shaped building with private gardens, alterations to the existing vehicular access, 
provision of 6 parking spaces and associated hardstanding/landscaping, bike storage and 
refuse facilities 

   
    

Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/01657/HSE Ward : Old Coulsdon 

Page 101



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

28 
 

Location : 39 Byron Avenue 
Coulsdon 
CR5 2JS 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Alterations, erection of a single storey ground floor wrap around rear and side extension 
   
    

Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02592/HSE Ward : Old Coulsdon 
Location : 25 Canon's Hill 

Coulsdon 
CR5 1HB 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Alterations, erection of an addtional storey and two storey rear extension 
   
    

Date Decision: 18.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03532/FUL Ward : Old Coulsdon 
Location : 258 Coulsdon Road 

Coulsdon 
CR5 1EA 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Retention of raised deck for seating to the front of the retail shop 
   
    

Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
 
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/02224/LP Ward : Park Hill And Whitgift 
Location : 23 Grimwade Avenue 

Croydon 
CR0 5DJ 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Ereection of loft conversion with rear dormer and front roof lights. 
   
    

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Lawful Dev. Cert. Granted (proposed) 
  

Page 102



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

29 
 

Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02371/DISC Ward : Park Hill And Whitgift 
Location : Development Site Former Site Of 

49 Selborne Road 
Croydon 
CR0 5JQ 
 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of conditions 4, 5 and 6 attached to Planning Permission 20/01954/FUL for 
Demolition of existing house, garage and outbuilding, and erection of a three storey 
building comprising 9 apartments, and provision of associated off-street parking, and 
associated refuse storage and cycle storage, and associated landscaping. 

   
    

Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03073/HSE Ward : Park Hill And Whitgift 
Location : 23 Grimwade Avenue 

Croydon 
CR0 5DJ 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Erection of a single storey rear extension 
   
    

Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03184/LP Ward : Park Hill And Whitgift 
Location : 15 Paul Gardens 

Croydon 
CR0 5QL 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Conversion of garage into a habitable room and alterations 
   
    

Date Decision: 20.08.21 
    

Lawful Dev. Cert. Granted (proposed) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03433/LP Ward : Park Hill And Whitgift 
Location : 5A Stanhope Road 

Croydon 
CR0 5NS 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Erection of single storey rear extension and construction of window in the flank elevation. 

Page 103



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

30 
 

   
    

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Lawful Dev. Cert. Granted (proposed) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/00216/FUL Ward : Purley Oaks And 
Riddlesdown 

Location : 96 - 98 Braemar Avenue 
South Croydon 
CR2 0QB 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Demolition of existing single storey office, storage building and meeting hall, erection of 
part three storey building including accommodation within the roof comprising of 6 no. 
flats and replacement community hall, alterations to vehicular access and provision of 
associated parking, cycle and refuse 

   

   
Date Decision: 18.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03313/LP Ward : Purley Oaks And 
Riddlesdown 

Location : 132 Brancaster Lane 
Purley 
CR8 1HH 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Alterations, erection of a double hip-to-gable roof extension and erection of two side 
dormers 
 

   

   
Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Lawful Dev. Cert. Granted (proposed) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03604/GPDO Ward : Purley Oaks And 
Riddlesdown 

Page 104



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

31 
 

Location : Midway House 
564 Brighton Road 
South Croydon 
CR2 6AW 
 

Type: Prior Appvl - Class M A1/A2 to 
dwelling 

Proposal : Notification for prior approval under the GPDO 2015 for the change of use under Class M 
from financial and professional services (Class E, formerly Class A2) to residential (Class 
C3) to create a 1-bedroom flat. 

   

   
Date Decision: 24.08.21 
    

Withdrawn application 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/04168/NMA Ward : Purley Oaks And 
Riddlesdown 

Location : 33 Derwent Drive 
Purley 
CR8 1ER 
 

Type: Non-material amendment 

Proposal : Non-material amendment (single storey front extension/roof alterations/extensions) linked 
to planning application (ref. 20/01068/HSE) for the Construction of a two storey side 
extension and single storey rear extension. 

   

   
Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Not approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 20/02913/FUL Ward : Purley And Woodcote 
Location : 61 Selcroft Road 

Purley 
CR8 1AL 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Construction of a two-storey building with roof accommodation and basement excavation 
comprising 7 self-contained flats, private/communal space; refuse and cycle storage; 
boundary treatment; car parking and hard and soft landscaping. 

   
    

Date Decision: 26.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Page 105



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

32 
 

Ref. No. : 21/00785/DISC Ward : Purley And Woodcote 
Location : 67 Higher Drive 

Purley 
CR8 2HR 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of Condition 5 (Land Contamination) attached to permission 20/01484/FUL for 
the demolition of existing building and erection of a four storey block of flats (including 
roofspace accommodation) and associated car parking, cycle parking, bin storage and 
landscaping. The proposed development comprises 17 residential apartments and 13 car 
parking spaces at 67 Higher Drive Purley CR8 2HR 
 

   
    

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/01485/FUL Ward : Purley And Woodcote 
Location : 15A Russell Hill 

Purley 
CR8 2JB 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Demolition of existing single storey detached dwellinghouse (with roof accommodation) 
including demolition of detached garage and erection of a part two; part three storey 
building (including lower ground levels and accommodation in the roof level) comprising 8 
self-contained flats; private/communal amenity and play space; hard and soft 
landscaping; boundary treatment; reinstatement of existing crossover and new crossover 
to provide forecourt parking; cycle and refuse provision and land level alterations 
including raising to the front. 

   
    

Date Decision: 20.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/01496/DISC Ward : Purley And Woodcote 
Location : 104 Hartley Down 

Purley 
CR8 4EB 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of conditions 2 (external facing materials), 3 (hard/soft landscaping), 4 
(construction logistics plan), 13 (tree protection plan) attached to planning permission 
19/00126/FUL for the erection of two storey detached dwellinghouse with new vehicular 
access off Coulsdon Road and parking area with turntable 

   
    

Date Decision: 16.08.21 
    

Approved 
  

Page 106



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

33 
 

Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/01970/HSE Ward : Purley And Woodcote 
Location : 168 Godstone Road 

Purley 
CR8 2DF 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Alterations, erection of a single storey rear extension 
   
    

Date Decision: 24.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02745/DISC Ward : Purley And Woodcote 
Location : Pheda House 

21A Green Lane 
Purley 
CR8 3PP 
 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of condition 8 - Carbon Dioxide Emissions attached to application 
18/01007/CONR to vary condition 1 (approved drawings) attached 17/05863/FUL for the 
demolition of existing dwelling: erection of two storey building with accommodation in roof 
space, comprising 6 two bedroom and 2 three bedroom flats: formation of vehicular 
access and provision of associated parking, refuse store and bike store 

   
    

Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02977/DISC Ward : Purley And Woodcote 
Location : 35 Manor Way 

Purley 
CR8 3BL 
 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of condition 8 (CO2 emissions) attached to permssion 17/00011/FUL dated 
03.03.17 for the erection of three bedroom detached dwelling at rear fronting Manor Way; 
formation of vehicular access and provision of associated parking. 

   
    

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03136/HSE Ward : Purley And Woodcote 

Page 107



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

34 
 

Location : 5A Cliff End 
Purley 
CR8 1BP 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Erection of a staircase to the rear of the property with a new balcony at first floor level. 
   
    

Date Decision: 27.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03167/FUL Ward : Purley And Woodcote 
Location : R/O 38 Russell Hill 

Purley 
CR8 2JA 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Erection of a pair of two storey semi-detached houses with associated cycle stores and 
refuse and formation of vehicular access and provision of associated parking 

   
    

Date Decision: 16.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03463/DISC Ward : Purley And Woodcote 
Location : 81 Higher Drive 

Purley 
CR8 2HN 
 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of conditions 2 ((b) hard landscape materials, (c) specification of garden 
furniture), 3 (various matters), 4 (hard/soft landscaping/management plan) and 10 
(carbon dioxide emissions) attached to planning permission 19/01690/CONR for 
Variation of condition 1 (alterations to the proposed plans namely in relation to unit mix, 
building footprint and design) linked to planning application 18/03241/FUL for the 
demolition of the existing dwelling.  Erection of a three storey building to provide 9 
residential units.  Formation of vehicular access and provision of associated parking, 
cycle storage and refuse store 

   
    

Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Not approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03474/FUL Ward : Purley And Woodcote 

Page 108



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

35 
 

Location : 71A Stoats Nest Road 
Coulsdon 
CR5 2JJ 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Erection of rear roof extension and two rooflights within front roofslope 
   
    

Date Decision: 18.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03633/CONR Ward : Purley And Woodcote 
Location : 49 Pampisford Road 

Purley 
CR8 2NJ 

Type: Removal of Condition 

Proposal : Variation to Conditions 1 (Approved Drawings) and 3 (No additional windows) of planning 
permission 19/04223/CONR granted for the erection of single/two storey side and rear 
extensions, alterations to existing porch to widen and change the roof, conversion of the 
roof space into habitable accommodation and installation of velux windows on the rear 
and side elevations. 

   
    

Date Decision: 26.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/04077/NMA Ward : Purley And Woodcote 
Location : 191 Brighton Road 

Purley 
CR8 4HF 
 

Type: Non-material amendment 

Proposal : Non-material amendment to planning permission ref. 18/01150/HSE for the erection of 
single/two storey front/side extension for a granny annexe. 

   
    

Date Decision: 16.08.21 
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/02531/HSE Ward : Sanderstead 
Location : 1 Stanley Gardens 

South Croydon 
CR2 9AH 

Type: Householder Application 

Page 109



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

36 
 

Proposal : Erection of two storey side/rear extension and single storey side/rear extension; increase 
in main roof ridge height with crown roof and loft conversion to include rear dormer and 
insertion of 4 no. rooflights in the roof slope. 

   
    

Date Decision: 20.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03446/HSE Ward : Sanderstead 
Location : 65 Upper Selsdon Road 

South Croydon 
CR2 8DJ 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Erection of an outbuilding in the rear garden and alterations 
   
    

Date Decision: 20.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03559/TRE Ward : Sanderstead 
Location : 1 Wettern Close 

South Croydon 
CR2 0NT 

Type: Consent for works to protected 
trees 

Proposal : Lime (T4) - pollard to previous pollard points. 
Sycamore (T5) - 1.5 Metre Crown Reduction up to a 25mm max cut size. 
(TPO 5, 1977) 

   
    

Date Decision: 24.08.21 
    

Consent Granted (Tree App.) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/03348/HSE Ward : Selsdon And Addington 
Village 

Location : 77 Littleheath Road 
South Croydon 
CR2 7SJ 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Alterations, erections of a single storey rear and side extension, conversion of existing 
garage to habitable space. 

   
    

Date Decision: 19.08.21 
    

Page 110



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

37 
 

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03688/LP Ward : Selsdon And Addington 
Village 

Location : 4 Ingham Road 
South Croydon 
CR2 8LT 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Certificate of Lawfulness (Proposed) for loft conversion including a rear dormer and 3x 
front roof lights to front roof slope. 

   
    

Date Decision: 16.08.21 
    

Lawful Dev. Cert. Granted (proposed) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 20/05761/FUL Ward : Selsdon Vale And Forestdale 
Location : 226 Addington Road 

South Croydon 
CR2 8LD 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Alterations, erection of extension to rear of the existing building to provide a 1 bedroom 
dwelling with private amenity courtyard, rear balcony amenity, external staircase and 
additional refuse and cycle provision at ground level. 

   
    

Date Decision: 18.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Planning Committee - Minor 

Applications 
  

 

     

    

Ref. No. : 20/02593/DISC Ward : Selhurst 
Location : Park Point  

17B Henderson Road 
Croydon 
CR0 2QG 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Detail pursuant to Condition 11 (Capping Layer Verification Report) of planning 
permission  ref 16/06470/FUL granted for Demolition of existing buildings: Erection of 
single/two/three storey building comprising 1 three bedroom, 2 two bedroom and 6 one 
bedroom flats: alterations to vehicular access and provision of , with associated car 
parking, cycle storage and bin stores, 

   

Page 111



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

38 
 

Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Not approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02920/FUL Ward : Selhurst 
Location : 47 Selhurst Road 

South Norwood 
London 
SE25 5QA 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Alterations, conversion of a maisonette property into two flats, extension of vehicle 
crossover for associated off-street parking, provision of associated refuse and cycle 
storage, and provision of associated amenity areas. 

   

Date Decision: 19.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/03312/HSE Ward : Shirley North 
Location : 3 Woodland Way 

Croydon 
CR0 7UB 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Alterations, erection of hip to gable extensions, enlargement of existing rear dormer 
extension, erection of two-storey front extension and installation of 2 rooflights in front 
roofslope. 

   
    

Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03367/FUL Ward : Shirley North 
Location : Croydon Golf Centre  

175 Long Lane 
Croydon 
CR0 7TE 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Erection of external staircase for additional access, pathway, lighting bollards and soft 
landscaping. 

   
    

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  

Page 112



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

39 
 

Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03552/HSE Ward : Shirley North 
Location : 12 Woodland Way 

Croydon 
CR0 7UB 
 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Erection of single-storey side/rear extension and dormer extension on side roofslope 
(following demolition of existing outbuilding in side garden) 

   
    

Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/03308/HSE Ward : Shirley South 
Location : 14 South Way 

Croydon 
CR0 8RP 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Erection of single storey side and rear extension following demolition of the existing 
garage and rear extension 

   

   
Date Decision: 16.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03549/TRE Ward : Shirley South 
Location : 1 Marlowe Lodge  

326 Wickham Road 
Croydon 
CR0 8BH 

Type: Consent for works to protected 
trees 

Proposal : T799 - Box Elder: Crown Reduce by 1.5 metre up to a max cut size of 25mm. 
(TPO 23, 1990) 

   

   
Date Decision: 24.08.21 
    

Consent Granted (Tree App.) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03557/LP Ward : Shirley South 

Page 113



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

40 
 

Location : 35 Shirley Hills Road 
Croydon 
CR0 5HQ 
 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Erection of single-storey side and rear extensions of dwellinghouse. Erection of 2no. 
detached outbuildings for purposes incidental to the enjoyment of the dwellinghouse 

   

   
Date Decision: 27.08.21 
    

Certificate Refused (Lawful Dev. Cert.) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03562/HSE Ward : Shirley South 
Location : 23 Bushey Road 

Croydon 
CR0 8EW 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Erection of a single-storey rear extension, first-floor side extension, loft conversion and 
rear roof dormer window. 

   

   
Date Decision: 26.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/01352/CONR Ward : South Croydon 
Location : Wandle Apartments  

19 Bartlett Street 
South Croydon 
CR2 6TB 

Type: Removal of Condition 

Proposal : Variation of Condition 1 (plans) and condition 2 (parking spaces) linked to planning 
application 18/01587/CONR for the alterations; Construction of third floor to provide 7 
one bedroom and 2 two bedroom flats; alterations to provide balconies to replacement 
doors at first and second floor levels 

   
    

Date Decision: 26.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02337/FUL Ward : South Croydon 

Page 114



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

41 
 

Location : St Peter's Churchyard 
St Peter's Road 
Croydon 
 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : The installation of 3No. antennas to be mounted within the tower behind replacement 
Glass Reinforced Plastic (GRP) louvres, the installation of 1 No. GPS node to be located 
behind the parapet on the south east corner of the tower and 1 No. electrical meter 
cabinet located within the bin store area adjacent to Heathfield Road and ancillary 
development thereto. 

   
    

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02380/FUL Ward : South Croydon 
Location : 45 - 51 Brighton Road 

South Croydon 
CR2 6ED 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Replacement of existing shopfront with a new shopfront including automatic double 
doors, erection of enclosure to rear containing 3 x AC plants and 2 x cooling fans, along 
with amendments to existing car park layout. 

   
    

Date Decision: 18.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02381/ADV Ward : South Croydon 
Location : 45 - 51 Brighton Road 

South Croydon 
CR2 6ED 
 

Type: Consent to display 
advertisements 

Proposal : Installation of 2X internally illuminated hanging signs, 1X internally illuminated totem sign 
at car park entrance, Fascia signs along the front of the building to be internally 
illuminated and various non illuminated signs within the shop windows. Re painting of the 
shop front to Dark Earth (RAL 8019) colour. 

   
    

Date Decision: 18.08.21 
    

Consent Granted (Advertisement) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Page 115



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

42 
 

Ref. No. : 21/02738/HSE Ward : South Croydon 
Location : 14 Croham Park Avenue 

South Croydon 
CR2 7HH 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Erection of a Garden Outbuilding 
   
    

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02845/FUL Ward : South Croydon 
Location : 13 Blenheim Park Road 

South Croydon 
CR2 6BG 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Erection of single-storey rear extension, basement and rear dormer to facilitate 
conversion of dwelling into 1x one-bedroom, 1x two-bedroom and 1x three-bedroom flats 
and associated landscaping. 

   
    

Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03461/CAT Ward : South Croydon 
Location : 64 Croham Manor Road 

South Croydon 
CR2 7BF 

Type: Works to Trees in a 
Conservation Area 

Proposal : T1 and T2 Fir tree - Trim back to boundary or as necessary to install new fence. 
   
    

Date Decision: 24.08.21 
    

No objection (tree works in Con Areas) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03543/DISC Ward : South Croydon 
Location : 8 Croham Valley Road 

South Croydon 
CR2 7NA 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of Condition 6 (Detailed design) of planning permission 20/02218/FUL 
(Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of a three storey building to provide 9 
residential units, with associated landscaped areas including children's playspace, 
vehicular access, parking, cycle and refuse storage) 

   
    

Date Decision: 26.08.21 

Page 116



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

43 
 

    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03544/DISC Ward : South Croydon 
Location : 8 Croham Valley Road 

South Croydon 
CR2 7NA 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of Condition 3 (Construction Logistic and Traffic Management Plan) of 
planning permission 20/02218/FUL (Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of a 
three storey building to provide 9 residential units, with associated landscaped areas 
including children's playspace, vehicular access, parking, cycle and refuse storage) 

   
    

Date Decision: 27.08.21 
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03545/DISC Ward : South Croydon 
Location : 8 Croham Valley Road 

South Croydon 
CR2 7NA 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of Condition 7(a) and (b) (landscaping) of planning permission 20/02218/FUL 
(Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of a three storey building to provide 9 
residential units, with associated landscaped areas including children's playspace, 
vehicular access, parking, cycle and refuse storage) 

   
    

Date Decision: 26.08.21 
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/00496/LP Ward : South Norwood 
Location : 16 Lawrence Road 

South Norwood 
London 
SE25 5AA 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Erection of outbuilding to HMO providing ancillary lounge/gym and storage space 
   

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Certificate Refused (Lawful Dev. Cert.) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

Page 117



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

44 
 

    

Ref. No. : 21/00497/LP Ward : South Norwood 
Location : 18 Lawrence Road 

South Norwood 
London 
SE25 5AA 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Erection of rear outbuilding to HMO providing ancillary lounge/gym and storage space. 
   

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Certificate Refused (Lawful Dev. Cert.) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02655/ADV Ward : South Norwood 
Location : Various Sites In Clifton Road 

South Norwood 
London 
SE25 6NJ 
 
 
 

Type: Consent to display 
advertisements 

Proposal : Display of 3 lamppost banner sites along Clifton Road between junctions Holmesdale 
Road to the north and Selhurst Road to the south in the London Borough of Croydon. 

   

Date Decision: 27.08.21 
    

Consent Granted (Advertisement) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/02565/HSE Ward : Thornton Heath 
Location : 184 Parchmore Road 

Thornton Heath 
CR7 8HA 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Retrospective application for erection of first-floor rear extension. 
   

Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02649/ADV Ward : Thornton Heath 

Page 118



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

45 
 

Location : Various Sites In Whitehorse Lane 
South Norwood 
London 
SE25 6UR 
 

Type: Consent to display 
advertisements 

Proposal : Display of 10 lamppost banner sites along Whitehorse Lane between junction B266 
Thornton Heath High Street to the south and S Norwood Hill to the North in the London 
Borough of Croydon. 

   

Date Decision: 20.08.21 
    

Consent Granted (Advertisement) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02650/ADV Ward : Thornton Heath 
Location : Various Sites In High Street 

Thornton Heath 
CR7 8RU 
 

Type: Consent to display 
advertisements 

Proposal : Display of 5 lamppost banner sites along B266 Thornton High Street between junction 
Whitehorse Lane to the south and The Drive to the north in the London Borough of 
Croydon. 

   

Date Decision: 27.08.21 
    

Consent Granted (Advertisement) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02653/ADV Ward : Thornton Heath 
Location : Various Sites In Park Road 

South Norwood 
London 
SE25 6LA 
 
 

Type: Consent to display 
advertisements 

Proposal : Display of 5 lamppost banners along Park Road between Whitehorse Road to the north 
and Holmesdale Road to the south in the London Borough of Croydon. 

   

Date Decision: 27.08.21 
    

Consent Granted (Advertisement) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03171/LP Ward : Thornton Heath 

Page 119



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

46 
 

Location : 8 Wharncliffe Gardens 
South Norwood 
London 
SE25 6DQ 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Loft conversion, with dormer in the rear roof slope and rooflights in the front roof slope 
   

Date Decision: 20.08.21 
    

Lawful Dev. Cert. Granted (proposed) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03289/FUL Ward : Thornton Heath 
Location : Flat 1, 24 Sandfield Road 

Thornton Heath 
CR7 8AU 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Change of use of ground floor flat from 3 bedroom flat (C3) to 3 bedroom HMO for 5 
occupants (C4). 

   

Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03290/FUL Ward : Thornton Heath 
Location : Flat 2, 24 Sandfield Road 

Thornton Heath 
CR7 8AU 
 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Change of use of first and second floor flat from 2 bedroom flat (C3) to 2 bedroom HMO 
for 4 occupants (C4). 

   

Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03322/HSE Ward : Thornton Heath 
Location : 40 Heath Road 

Thornton Heath 
CR7 8NE 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Rear roof extensions including an increase in the ridge height by 150mm, with associated 
alterations 

   

Date Decision: 16.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  

Page 120



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

47 
 

Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03361/LP Ward : Thornton Heath 
Location : 40 Heath Road 

Thornton Heath 
CR7 8NE 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Lawful development application for ground floor rear extensions to the house 
   

Date Decision: 18.08.21 
    

Lawful Dev. Cert. Granted (proposed) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03547/FUL Ward : Thornton Heath 
Location : 38 Woodville Road 

Thornton Heath 
CR7 8LG 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Conversion of existing dwelling to HMO for 5 occupants 
   

Date Decision: 27.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/01135/ADV Ward : Waddon 
Location : Land Fronting Colonnades 619 Purley Way 

Croydon 
CR0 4RQ 

Type: Consent to display 
advertisements 

Proposal : Installation of 10 metre high internally illuminated freestanding 'bucket pole' sign 
   

Date Decision: 27.08.21 
    

Consent Granted (Advertisement) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03303/HSE Ward : Waddon 
Location : 24 Bourne Street 

Croydon 
CR0 1XL 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Proposed ground and first floor rear extensions to the house 
   

Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    

Page 121



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

48 
 

    

Ref. No. : 21/03689/DISC Ward : Waddon 
Location : Garage Site To The Read Of 126-130 

Coldharbour Road, Croydon, CR0 4DW 
 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Discharge of Conditions 11 and 12 attached to Planning Permission 20/03260/CONR for 
Variation of Conditions 1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 13, 10, 17, 18 attached to Planning Permission 
16/06273/FUL for Demolition of garages and erection of a two-storey building comprising 
4 one bedroom and 4 two bedroom  flats together with landscaping and other associated 
works. 

   

Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Part Approved / Part Not Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03903/DISC Ward : Waddon 
Location : Makro  

Peterwood Way 
Croydon 
CR0 4UQ 

Type: Discharge of Conditions 

Proposal : Details pursuant to Condtion 4 (Archaeological Watching Brief Written Scheme of 
Investigation prepared by RPS version 2) of planning permission  20/00420/ful granted 
for  External alterations to the existing warehouse and reconfiguration of the parking area 
to facilitate the change of use of the building from Cash & Carry (sui generis) to a Storage 
& Distribution warehouse (B8) 

   

Date Decision: 16.08.21 
    

Part Approved / Part Not Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03961/PDO Ward : Waddon 
Location : Pets At Home 

413 Purley Way 
Croydon 
CR0 4NX 
 

Type: Observations on permitted 
development 

Proposal : Installation of 2 no. microcell antennas together with a small GPS module as part of a 
small cell system on the fascia of the building with deployment of 2 no. small equipment 
cabinets. 

   

Date Decision: 26.08.21 
    

No Objection 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

Page 122



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

49 
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/03300/HSE Ward : Woodside 
Location : 616 Davidson Road 

Croydon 
CR0 6DJ 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Erection of a single storey rear extension 
   

Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03350/LP Ward : Woodside 
Location : 652 Davidson Road 

Croydon 
CR0 6DJ 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Proposal : Erection of front porch infill and installation of a lightwell in rear flat roof section. 
   

Date Decision: 20.08.21 
    

Lawful Dev. Cert. Granted (proposed) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03605/NMA Ward : Woodside 
Location : Eldon Court 

Eldon Park 
South Norwood 
London 
SE25 4JG 
 

Type: Non-material amendment 

Proposal : Non-Material Amendment to Planning Permission 18/06049/FUL for Demolition of 
existing building and erection of a 5-storey building comprising 15 residential flats (6 x 
one bed, 8 x two bed and 1 x three bed) together with the provision of one disabled 
parking space, secure cycle parking, refuse storage, private and communal amenity 
space, associated landscaping and infrastructure works. 

   

Date Decision: 19.08.21 
    

Not approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03691/LP Ward : Woodside 
Location : 77 Cobden Road 

South Norwood 
London 
SE25 5NU 

Type: LDC (Proposed) Operations 
edged 

Page 123



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

50 
 

Proposal : Erection of proposed rear dormers with 2x roof lights to the front elevation and loft 
conversion 

   

Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Lawful Dev. Cert. Granted (proposed) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

     

    

Ref. No. : 21/00533/FUL Ward : West Thornton 
Location : 88 Canterbury Road 

Croydon 
CR0 3HA 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Alterations, conversion of single-dwelling to form 1x 3b flat and 1x 2b flat. 
   

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02036/FUL Ward : West Thornton 
Location : 12 Galpins Road 

Thornton Heath 
CR7 6EA 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Alterations including erection of two storey rear extension, outbuilding and the conversion 
from self-contained property into three separate dwellings. 

   

Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02307/FUL Ward : West Thornton 
Location : Best Western Plus  

2 Dunheved Road South 
Thornton Heath 
CR7 6AD 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Replace cladding on two parts of the building on the Ground floor with render to match 
existing render on upper part of the building. 

   

Date Decision: 23.08.21 
    

Permission Granted 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02651/ADV Ward : West Thornton 

Page 124



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

51 
 

Location : Various Sites In Brigstock Road 
Thornton Heath 
CR7 7JE 
 
 

Type: Consent to display 
advertisements 

Proposal : Display of 6 lamppost banner sites along B266 Brigstock Road near Thornton Heath 
Station. 

   

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Consent Granted (Advertisement) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/02859/HSE Ward : West Thornton 
Location : 65 Mayfield Road 

Thornton Heath 
CR7 6DN 

Type: Householder Application 

Proposal : Demolition and erection of part two storey part single storey side/rear extension, 
construction of hip to gable loft conversion with dormer in the rear roof slope and roof 
lights in the front, and erection of outbuilding. 

   

Date Decision: 17.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03321/FUL Ward : West Thornton 
Location : 44 Broughton Road 

Thornton Heath 
CR7 6AL 

Type: Full planning permission 

Proposal : Alterations, conversion of single-dwelling to form 1x 3b flat and 2x 1b flat, erection of L-
shaped rear dormer extension, erection of single-storey rear extension and installation of 
3 rooflights in front roofslope. 

   

Date Decision: 27.08.21 
    

Permission Refused 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/03575/GPDO Ward : West Thornton 
Location : 2 Colliers Water Lane 

Thornton Heath 
CR7 7LA 
 

Type: Prior Appvl - Class A Larger 
House Extns 

Proposal : Erection of a single storey rear extension projecting out 6 metres from the rear wall of the 
original house with a height to the eaves of 3 metres and a maximum overall height of 3 
metres 

   

Page 125



Decisions (Ward Order) since last Planning Control Meeting as at: 31st August 2021 

52 
 

Date Decision: 25.08.21 
    

Prior Approval No Jurisdiction (GPDO) 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting    
    

Ref. No. : 21/04105/NMA Ward : West Thornton 
Location : Irvine Court 

3 Dunheved Road North 
Thornton Heath 
CR7 6AX 
 

Type: Non-material amendment 

Proposal : Non-Material Amendment to Planning Permission Ref 17/03574/FUL for Construction of 
lower ground floor and third floors and first and second floor side extensions to provide 
an additional 4 one bedroom, 3 two bedroom and 2 three bedroom flats, recladding of 
building, relocation of bin store plus the creation of 15no. car parking spaces, 35no. cycle 
parking spaces and hard and soft landscaping measures. 

   

Date Decision: 27.08.21 
    

Approved 
  
Level: Delegated Business Meeting   
 

    

 

Page 126


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes, 29/07/2021 Planning Committee
	Minutes, 26/08/2021 Planning Committee

	5 Development presentations
	6 Planning applications for decision
	6.1 21/00493/FUL Morris House, 2 Bensham Lane, Croydon, CR0 2RQ
	ProjectName: Bensham Lane-CENTRAL MODEL_ana.lopes@astudio.co.uk
	SheetNumber: 010000
	SheetName: Site Location Plan - Existing
	CurrentRevision: P01
	CurrentRevisionDate: 18/01/2021
	CurrentRevisionDescription: Planning
	SheetSize: 841 x 596
	Item 6.1  Morris House 2 Bensham Lane Croydon

	8 Other planning matters
	8.1 Weekly Planning Decision

